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Enterprise Culture

EEXL

In order to achieve greater success for our Group’s future, we work our objectives like
a four-equal-sides square, each side has to make progress simultaneously!

IE 38 - FEHRIE - EXRBR > HAHX !

IR
SHAREHOLDERS
v
&= w
S Q e OUR OBJECTIVES:
o E m i3 Create values for our customers;
w ‘ 2 Create profits for our shareholders;
8 Create future for our employees;
Create prosperity for our society.
BMHRE
EMPLOYEES BEFIEEE
= AR A ER R
RETRIERS
R ERIEER -
OUR MISSION:

Developing environmental
friendly energy to secure
sustainable development
and make contributions to
our future.

HFIR e
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[ OUR CULTURE:
& 2 °

* Integrity
OUR VISION: * Rewards
e Excellency
e Harmony

Turning the Group into an
internationally influential .
enterprise which produces FEMHY AL -

environmental friendly .
o 3t
RMMEER c S

o FEK
GSESE e
BEREMRRRF
BERRZE -

and clean energy.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

2013 2012
s A et +/(-)
Revenue (excluding the LPG segment) 2w (M LPG 0 36)

(HK$million) (BBBT) 6,440 4,805 34%
Gross Profit (HK$'million) EM(BEAT) 1,454 1,102 32%
Total Sales on Gas Volume (million m?) MAHEERE (BB K) 2,247 1,930 16%
Transmission Volume to HINEBS

Third Party (million m3) (BB FK) 377 351 7%
Total Transportation Volume (million m?) BEERE(EEMTK) 124 100 24%
Profit for The Year (HK$'million) Frmtl (B&#T) 938 734 28%
Profit Attributable to Owners NEER NG EA

of the Company, excluding other FOBRE M (E518), s

(losses)/gains (HK$'million) (&%) 420 311 35%
Profit Attributable to Owners NEGER NG A

of the Company (HK$'million) (BE&EBT) 401 366 10%
Earnings Per Share (HK cents) BRREF (B 8.142 7.396 10%
EBITDA (HK$'million) OERFAE -~ HE - FrER

#Em AN (B8EAT) 1,385 1,057 31%
Total Assets (HK$'million) BEAR(BEET) 12,157 9,188 32%
Net Assets (HK$'million) BEEFR(EEHET) 5,826 5,027 16%
Net Assets Value Per Share (HK cents) BFAEE (B 0.71 0.64 1%
Cash Per Share (HK cents) BRI E GBI 0.68 0.49 39%
Dividend Per Share (HK cents) T (B 0.72 0.65 1%

Notes:

a. defined as profit before tax, excluding interest, depreciation and amortisation

b. Equity attributable to owners of the Company/Issued and fully paid ordinary

shares

C. Cash and cash equivalents/Issued and fully paid ordinary shares

d. The board of directors proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31

December 2013

B s

BRBIENS - e REHZBRRATER
NEER AEEESBETHE L BRRE
ReMReSEBE BRITHR L BRRE

EERBREINBEHE_T—=F+_A=+—
B IEFE 2 RERES
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Operation Map
X0 fiE

Main trunk pipelines T E®# & E# Company operating assets/data A REZEERHE

m—— \Nest-to-East line 1 m==_ Branch pipeline
ERRE % NAIBAXREE

m— \Nest-to-East line 2 [ J City gas project with concession right
G AR RAGEE

=== West-to-Eastline 3 (under construction) A LNG processing plant
ARRE=R(ER) RABRIERAR TR

== Se-Ning-Lan line B CNG/LNG station

B 45 RARARINRIE

mm— Shaan-Jing line 4 [ ] Province with natural gas sales volume >

B P A% 500mn m? in 2013

NEI2013F HEBE.0BIL I RIA LB )
— Shddﬂ ng line 3
Rz

== Cang-Zi Line
RIS

= Zhong-Wu Line
BEAR

=== Myanmar-China Line

FRATAR

Heilongjiang 2 #E/T

Horgas
(gas from
Central Asia)
(e 3zt O X ASR)

,’~--~ -

-

Liaoning &%
Xinjiang #7358

Lun-nan

Inner Mongolia A5 1

AR

Tibet FaiE

Chuanyu
Sichuan P4)I| gas field
VI EA

&

Yunnan &

Gas from
Burma
A O

Note: For illustrative purpose only, actual scale and location might differ slightly
i ERRER - IR E PR ERIEREE HA

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013



China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) (stock code: 603) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in investment
in natural gas and energy related business. Gas operations of the Group
include piped city gas business, pipeline design and construction, as well
as transports, distributes, sales of compressed natural gas (“CNG"”) and
liquefied natural gas (“LNG").

As a piped city natural gas service provider, the Group supplies city natural
gas through long-distance transmission pipelines. With 60 concession
rights, the Group has built up city pipeline networks which offer stable and
sufficient natural gas resources to local household, industrial, commercial
and other users.

As a non-pipeline natural gas provider, the Group has established 2 LNG
plants in Qinghai Province, People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). Meanwhile,
the Group has also built certain CNG primary stations to ensure the supply
of natural gas is secured and stable all year round. These facilities support
supplies of natural gas to cities not yet covered by pipeline networks and are
treated as emergency backup gas sources for the Group.

As a major national operator of natural gas stations for automobile natural
gas filling, the Group has built 36 CNG stations, 6 LNG stations and 2 L/
CNG station across the country. All kinds of automobiles, city buses and
long-distance buses can be converted into natural gas operation system
by paying an affordable fee. Some of the provinces will provide subsidy to
automobile owners who are willing to convert their automobile into natural
gas operating system. With supports from the PRC government, the Group is
offering inexpensive, clean and environmental friendly natural gas energy to
the transportation sector.

As an operator of natural gas branch line business, the Group has already
completed 930 km branch lines in Qinghai, Hunan, Jiangsu, Jiangxi, Ningxia,
Shandong and Guizhou Province. Apart from bringing stable natural gas
transmission revenue, the branch line constructions will also help the
development of projects along the down-stream.

The Group has developed natural gas transport and logistics enterprises in
the PRC, which has already set up LNG and CNG fleets which reinforced the
mobility and coverage of our natural gas supplies.
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Corporate Profiles
NAEN

(continued) (#)

Main provinces
Qinghai Province

Based on the foundation of Xining Company, in view of the opportunity
from Se-Ning-Lan Multi-Track Construction, more than ten companies have
been incorporated one after another in Qinghai Province. Also, the Group
and the wholly-owned subsidiary of Reform Commission in Qinghai Province
have established a JV company to engage in natural gas business covering
the whole Qinghai Province. In particular, the 2 LNG plants in Qinghai China
Qil and Gas and Xining China Qil Corporation with daily processing capacity
of 250,000m? each, have allowed end users to enjoy natural gas in areas
where pipelines have not been reached.

Shandong Province

Started with Binzhou Company, our Group plans the development of the
natural gas market in Shandong area in a unified way. We have gradually
strengthened and improved the existing projects, actively expanded our
operations toward the surrounding areas and kept a powerful trend of
development. Numbers of CNG, LNG and L/CNG stations have been put into
operation in 2013. Together with the gas machinery and dual-fuel machinery
used for inland canal ships in Shandong Province, this district will gradually
lead the Group into a different natural gas operations level.

Hunan Province
In elaborating our resources advantage of Xiangli Branch Line, we have built
our supply base in Liling that we can actively expand outwards. From Liling,

we begin to develop new projects and at the same time continue to improve
the sale capacity and market share of CNG and LNG.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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Jiangsu Province and Anhui Province

Our Group has successfully landed our feet along Jiangdu-Nantong Pipeline
i.e. Yangzhou, Taizhou and Nantong projects as well as a few towns,
development zones, and industrial parks. Besides the natural gas primary
station and a number of CNG stations in Nanjing and Maanshan, another
few CNG stations will be put into operations in the coming year. Two major
branch lines were built within this district: namely the Taizhou-Jiangyan-
Dainan branch line and Nantong — Rugao — Haian branch line.

Other Provinces (Guangdong, Jiangxi, Hubei, Ningxia, Shanxi,
Guizhou Provinces)

In order to create favorable conditions for the natural gas reception from
West-to-East Gas Supply 2nd line, Chaozhou and Yingde Company have set
up LNG reception stations and realised gas supply, which also steps up the
development of surrounding natural gas markets. The Group has set up a
LNG distribution team and established a LNG sales network in this district. At
the same time, by leveraging the advantage of LNG sales, we have developed
the corresponding natural gas markets and realised a win-win situation of
both sale and development. In 2013, the Group successfully expanded its
business to Guizhou Province, and obtained four new concession rights.
The Group will rely on Myanmar — China Line to further expand into the
surrounding markets.
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Corporate Information
NEIEHR
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LEGAL ADVISERS

(As to Hong Kong Law)
LI & Partners

(As to PRC Law)
Beijing Huaao Law & Partners

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 2805, 28th Floor

Sino Plaza

255-257 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

STOCK CODE
603

WEBSITE AND E-MAIL ADDRESS

Website: http://www.hk603.com
E-mail: info@hk603.com
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the business review and prospect of China Oil
And Gas Group Limited (“China Oil & Gas” or “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013 to all
shareholders.

DIVIDEND

The board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) resolved to
recommend to the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 29 May 2014 a
final dividend of HK cents 0.72 (2012: HK cents 0.65) per share for the year
ended 31 December 2013, which will be paid on Monday, 23 June 2014
to those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Tuesday, 10 June 2014. The 2013 total final dividend will
amount to approximately HK$36,005,000 (2012: HK$ 32,275,000), the
dividend payout ratio is approximately 10% of the profit attributable to the
owners of the Company.

BRIPR

RARARESLBRRIEZP MR REBFR QA
(TmRR ] s [  EREM AR [&E])
HE—Z—=F+-R=+—RHIFEZ¥#%0O
FRERE o

2

RABEER([ESERDBEABN T —NFRA
ZHAB(EHM) ETHAREERRAEFTFAY
L ARARRRRERREEE S —=F1+=A
—+—HALEFEZREREER0.72BW(=ZE
—ZF 0.6581L) c MBBREBNR=-_Z—NO
FRAZFT=ZB(ER)RETFTRZZE—EFA
ATH(EBD)RIARBKREAMHER - =F
—=FREREEFEIA A36,005,000E T (=
T — =4 132,275,000 7T) - IRELELH AR
BB AEEFREF/10% °
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#&)

RESULTS

2013 was a year full of challenges for the Group. During the year, the Group
was able to maintain rapid growth amid the difficult environment, it carried
out outward expansion and optimisation in all business scopes. Operating
in a highly competitive gas industry, it was the concerted efforts of all
employees which contributed to the success of the Group in the past year.

Revenue of the Group was HK$6,440 million in 2013, representing an
increase of 34% compared with HK$4,805 million for last year (excluding
the LPG segment in 2012), the growth was mainly due to the recurring gas
sales and an increase in gas pipeline connection income. After deducting
the fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, profit for the year and profit attributable to owners of the Group were
HK$956 million and HK$420 million (2012: HK$680 million and HK$311
million) respectively, with year-on-year growth rates of 41% and 35%.

As of 31 December 2013, total assets of the Group amounted to HK$12,157
million, or a growth of 32%; net asset value was HK$5,826 million, an
increase of 16%.

—ECHEHEERFERRUBN—F - F
N KREERBENRETEARFREER - &
BEEEXGHREETHRREL - LRRBEHF
HWRRITER  2RETI RSN BE—FNA
FRBERRE

—E—=F SEEBREXETEMLEET R
b EFA805BATL(EMEZT —Z_FIPGE
HIEE34%  EEFTBERELETERTIEED
EIMEMREBERRALER - MBRIEQAFEL
BHEAENTBEEN N EE(BE), W F
Wi F B E B A AR A B S5 R1A9.5618
BILRA208BT(ZZE—=F55% : 6.801&
BITHINEBT) BREESH A% R
350/0 °©

R-E—=F+-A=+—0 SEEEEAR
121571887 - 1BR32%  FEEA58.26EH
TT R 16% °

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013



BUSINESS REVIEW

City gas projects

The Group's total gas sales volume reached 2,247 million m* during the year,
representing an increase of 16% as compared to 2012; gas transmission
volume was 377 million m? and transportation volume was 124 million m?.

Gas sales volume to residential users was 487 million m? (2012: 448 million
m?3), gas sales volume to industrial, commercial and other users was 1,366
million m3 (2012: 1,179 million m?) and to gas stations was 394 million m?3
(2012: 304 million m3), representing an increase of 9%, 16% and 30%
respectively.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (4)
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#%)

In 2013, the Group incorporated 11 new project companies, obtained 9 city
gas concession rights in Anlong county, Puan county, Qinglong county and
Ceheng county of Qianxinan prefecture, Guizhou province, Xindian town of
Xinyi city, Jiangsu province, Dafeng city, Jiangsu province, Longde county of
Ningxia Hui Autonomous Region, Cuikou town and Yanwu town of Qingyun
city, Shandong province. Currently, the Group has established a total of
102 gas project companies in 48 cities in 14 provinces and autonomous
administrative regions of China and possessed 60 city gas concession rights.
It completed new connections to approximately 150,000 residential users,
and 757 industrial, commercial and other users during the year, and had
aggregate connections to approximately 675,000 residential users and
5,500 industrial, commercial and other users. The city and courtyard pipeline
network was extended by 473 km, and in aggregate 4,901 km.

Concession Rights
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M=% I&AFAMIEHE  THE L
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AA R BRSO M MR R e £ - &3
ERFEM14EE R ERE 48 EHTARMAR
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

(continued) (4)

End Users
Al
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FERAR MIEREMAR
Promotion of LNG business LNG 255 E
In 2013, the Group speeded up the promotion and use of gas instead of oil, ZE-=F - SEINREE NG AR | EB
selectively focused its key LNG activities on the LNG projects in Jiangsu, Gan WRER EERSEHREIAR - BAIH I
River of Jiangxi etc. Progress was made in converting vessels and vehicles TEINGIEE - EMER ~ BIA - ING Bh ¥ 3
to natural gas and LNG point-to-point projects, and conversion of 14 LNG THEHRGER - 2FTHINGHAIEE 14428 -
vessels and 413 LNG vehicles were completed during the year. INGE 41387 o
Natural gas branch pipelines ARRIBREE
As an operator of natural gas branch pipelines, it completed approximately ERRARZGEHEB  EER T2 —=F#
108 km new high-pressure pipelines in 2013, and 930 km was completed in EREBEFLI108AE - BETEKI30AE
aggregate, with a total designed transmission capacity of over 13 billion m? MR EtRRAE NEBBRFE 13018 K ©

per year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(continued) (#&)

Gas station projects

The Group currently has 36 CNG stations, 6 LNG stations and 2 L/CNG
stations. Another 8 stations are under construction and all expected to be in
operation in 2014. Besides, we are proceeding with the cooperations with
local governments and public transportation companies for over 10 station
projects.

SENIOR NOTES

In April 2013, the Company issued US$350 million senior notes bearing
an interest rate of 5.25% per annum payable semi-annually in arrear
due 2018 at par with an oversubscription of 13 times. Standard & Poor’s
gave the Company a credit rating of “BB+" with stable outlook, Moody’s
Investors Service gave the Company a credit rating of “Bal” with stable
outlook. These reflect the Company’s solid and stable financial position and
operational prospects.

Successful issuance of the senior notes not only broaden the financing
channels and enhanced the visibility into the international capital markets of
the Group, which together laid a solid foundation for the rapid and stable
development for the Group in the future.

Key covenants of the senior notes including, among others, the following:

1. The EBITDA (defined as profit before tax, excluding interest,
depreciation and amortisation) must be greater than 3 times of finance
costs;

2. the aggregate principal amount of outstanding of all indebtedness
of subsidiaries must not exceed an amount equal to 15% of the total
asset of the Group;

3. in the event that any person or group acquires a greater voting power
than the existing largest shareholder of the Company, the Company is
required to make an offer to repurchase all senior notes outstanding
at the purchase price equal to 101% of their principal amount, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the date of repurchase.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

At present, although there is a slowdown in the economic growth in China,
the development trend is still positive. The energy industry is currently in a
transformation and adjustment stage. The PRC government proposes that
it will actively promote the mixed-ownership economy and intensify reforms
in state-owned enterprises, which aims to break the resource monopoly in
energy industry, maximise energy structure, change the mode of energy
development, and form a clean direction of equity diversification for
enterprises. The Group has been actively developing business with enterprise
owned by the central government and local governments as well as joint
ventures established in China by private enterprises for years, and has rich
experience in the implementation of mixed-ownership structure. Along with
the intensification of mixed-ownership economic reform, the Group would
have definite advantage in securing energy projects and fostering business
development.

To address the issue of strong smog weather that affected vast areas across
China in the past year, the State Council formulated ten measures to
control air pollution, among which were “speeding up the adjustment of
energy structure, increasing the supply of clean energy like natural gas and
converting coal to methane”. With the arrival of the low carbon emission
era, the use of natural gas is the best solution for the use of clean energy,
and as the pace of urbanization in China accelerates, the demand for natural
gas in the market will continue to grow.

In June 2013, the Chinese government issued notice on the adjustment of
natural gas prices, aiming at setting up a dynamic adjustment mechanism
which would reflect the demand and supply in the market by linking the
scarcity of resources to the prices of renewable energy, and gradually
streamline the price comparison relationship of natural gas and renewal
energy, eventually achieving a total liberalisation of natural gas prices. This
is an important move to break monopoly, open the market and bring in
competition, as well as an important measure for the protection of increasing
exploration and production, increasing energy import and ensuring the
supply of natural gas sources.

According to the Plan, during the “Twelfth Five-Year Plan” period, there
will be 2,500 billion m* of conventional natural gas available from proven
geological reserves, of which approximately 1,900 billion m? are technically
recoverable reserves, and new proven geological reserves of coalbed
methane will account for approximately 1,000 billion m* By 2015, the
natural gas supply capacity in China will reach approximately 176 billion
m?3, combining 139 billion m? of conventional natural gas; 15-18 billion m?
of natural gas converted from coal; approximately 16 billion m? from the
ground development and production of coalbed methane. According to the
contracts already signed, by 2015 the import volume of natural gas by China
will be approximately 94 billion m3. These will secure the sources of supply of
natural gas.
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The natural gas resources of China are mainly concentrated in the western,
central and northern regions, and major demand is in the eastern coastal
region, thus creating the need for the transmission of gas from the west to
the main piped networks in the east, West East Pipelines, Central Asia-China
Pipeline, Myanmar China Pipeline and the construction of LNG receiving
terminal along the coast, this has basically formed the multiple gas supply
structure of “Transmission from West to East, from North to South, and
from Offshore to Onshore”. Currently China has developed a main pipeline
network with an annual gas transmission capacity of 134 billion m?, and LNG
stations with an annual handling volume of 25 million tonnes; it is expected
that in 2015 when the Shaan-Jing Line 3, West-to-East Line 3 and natural
gas receiving terminals along all coastal areas are constructed and put into
operation, this will make the annual gas transmission capacity of natural gas
to reach 262.4 billion m3.

Under the guidance of the strategic thinking of “Enhancing management,
innovating and expansion, and market strengthening” of the Group,
internally it has implemented all management enhancement measures,
formed a management model of five business units with three regional
companies, set up a remuneration allocation mechanism comparable to the
market to enhance both the profitability of the Group and staff value to
support the stable and realize its long term development of the Group; while
externally the Group has on the strong foundation of its existing projects
actively pushed forward the projects under construction, expanded the
regional markets, stressed on investment return and risk control, to ensure
the regulated, sustainable, effective and safe development of the Group in
the future.

FUTURE BUSINESS STRATEGIES

In order to maintain the Group’s sustainability and value over the longer
term, the Group will continue to look for suitable investment opportunities
and projects with stable cash inflows and simple management mechanism in
other areas.

APPRECIATION

At last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to all our
staff, shareholders, bond holders and business partners for their hard work
and great support in the past year!

On behalf of the Board
China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following discussions should be read in conjunction with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group and its notes and other
sections in the annual report for the year ended 2013 (“Year").

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$6,440 million
(2012:HK$4,805 million), representing an increase of approximately 34%.
The Group's cost of sales was HK$4,986 million (2012: HK$3,695 million),
representing an increase of approximately 35%. Gross profit amounted
to HK$1,454 million (2012: HK$1,110 million) with gross profit margin
maintaining at 23% for both years. The comparison above have excluded the
LPG segment in 2012.

Total revenue for the Year combining sales and distribution of natural
gas and gas pipeline connection and construction income amounted to
HK$5,399 million and HK$1,041 million respectively, representing a year-
on-year increase of 25% and 110%. Sales and distribution of natural gas
continued to be the Group’s main source of income and constituted 84% of
the Year's total revenue (2012: 90%, excluding the LPG segment in 2012).
It is expected that the number of new connections will eventually enable
the Group to maintain stable growth in the sales of natural gas. With the
increase in the connection and construction income, the Group will continue
to establish more channels for the sale of natural gas and provide services to
more end-users, which will in turn lay a solid foundation for more volume
growth on sales of natural gas in the future.

The Group's selling and distribution costs increased by 29% to approximately
HK$58 million in 2013 from HK$45 million in 2012. The increase was in line
with the Group’s new project companies and new concession rights. The
Group placed great emphasis on the effectiveness and appropriateness of
sales strategies and successfully controlled its selling and distribution costs at
0.9% (2012: 0.9%) of total revenue.

2013 was a year of enhancing the Group’s management capability, and
we managed to trim out administrative expenses by 12% from HK$248
million in 2012 to HK$218 million in 2013. With stringent cost control and
improvement in efficiency, the Group successfully curbed its administrative
expenses at 3% of total revenue in 2013, as compared to 5% in 2012.

Finance costs increased from last year's HK$38 million to the current year's
HK$115 million, which was mainly constituted by coupon interests on our
senior notes issued on 25 April 2013. The Group's weighted average cost of
all indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) as at 31 December 2013 was 4.9% (2012: 3.8%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Excluding the fair value (losses) and gains of financial assets through profit
or loss for both years which were non-recurring in nature, and coupon
interests paid on our senior notes issued during the year, the Group's profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately HK$420 million,
as compared to HK$311 million in 2012, representing an increase of 35%
compared with the same period of 2012, exceeding the Group's target set at
the beginning of the Year.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

It is the Group’s policy to use the cash flow generated from operations
and appropriate level of borrowings as the principal source of fund to
finance major expansion and acquisition. On 25 April 2013, the Company
issued US$350 million senior notes bearing an interest rate of 5.25% per
annum payable semi-annually in arrear due 2018 at par. The Group's total
indebtedness (including bank borrowings, other borrowings and senior
notes) amounted to HK$4,335 million (2012: HK$2,357 million).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash and cash equivalents and
time deposits with maturity over three months of approximately HK$4,173
million (2012: HK$3,149 million). Total assets of HK$12,157 million (2012:
HK$9,188 million), and among which current assets were HK$5,426 million
(2012: HK$4,071 million). Total liabilities of the Group were HK$6,331
million (2012: HK$4,162 million), and among which current liabilities were
HK$2,680 million (2012: HK$2,945 million). Under the Group’s current
liabilities included receipt in advance of approximately HK$1,007 million
(2012: HK$1,147 million).

The Group's debt-to-asset ratio, measured on the basis of total indebtedness
divided by total assets was 36% (2012: 26%). The current ratio (current
assets divided by current liabilities) of the Group was 2.02 times (2012: 1.38
times). EBITDA to interest cover ratio was at healthy level of 12.08 times. The
financial and liquidity of the Group is at a very healthy and stable position.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

At the end of 2013, the Group employed a total of approximately 3,643
(2012: 3,435) full-time employees, where mostly were stationed in the PRC.
Total staff cost for the Year amounted to HK$248 million (2012: HK$206
million). The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total
remuneration of the employees consisted of basic salary, cash bonus and
share-based incentives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The Group has pledged part of its equity interest (actual capital investment
at the time of drawdown) in China City Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“CCNG"),
a subsidiary owned as to 51% by the Group, as security for an other
borrowing of HK$700,000,000.

As at 31 December 2013, certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets of the Group are pledged as
securities for certain banking facilities of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no material contingent liability as at 31 December 2013.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the
Group's treasury function at the head office in Hong Kong. One of the
major objectives of the Group’s treasury policies is to manage its exposure
to fluctuation in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. It is the
Group's policy not to engage in speculative activities.

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. The Group’s certain
bank deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars, and the Group’s offshore bank loans and senior notes are
denominated in Renminbi and United States dollars.

Other than those disclosed, the Group does not have any material exposures
to foreign exchange fluctuations. The Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign currency
exposure closely and may, depending on the circumstances and trend of
foreign currencies, consider adopting a significant foreign currency hedging
policy in the future.
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LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has no litigation.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
During the Year, a total of 35,310,000 share options had been exercised by
the employees of the Group at the exercise price of HK$0.43 per share and

320,000 share options had been forfeited.

As at 31 December 2013, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$50,007,162.13 divided into 5,000,716,213 shares of HK$0.01 each.
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Biographical Details of Directors

CHAIRMAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of the Company on 30 August 2006. He was also
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 4 November
2009. Mr. Xu is the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee of
the Company (the “CG Committee”) and a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Xu graduated from Xi‘an Shiyou University (7% f)f
KE) and University of International Business and Economics ($f4MEEE 5
K, he is a certified public accountant and lawyer. Mr. Xu has 25 years’
experience in management, investments, legal, and finance.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhu Yuan, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. He was appointed as the senior vice
president of the Company on 4 November 2009. Mr. Zhu is a member of
the CG Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
graduated from China University of Mining And Technology and is a certified
senior accountant. He is engaged in oil and gas industries for over 40 years,
and has deep research and extensive experience in investment and operation
of the usage of natural gas, city gas and liquefied natural gas projects.
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Ms. Guan Yijun, aged 49, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company on 10 September 2010. She was appointed as the vice president
of the Company on 1 September 2006. Ms. Guan is a member of the CG
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. She
graduated from Changchun Normal University and has extensive business
operation management experiences almost 20 years.

Mr. Cheung Shing, aged 61, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 13 January 2006. He is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Cheung is a member of each of the CG Committee,
the Remuneration Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”).
He worked in China Petroleum Qilu Petrochemical Refinery (4G M7 E
FE1{LHER), China Petroleum Shengli Oilfield (R EIAHEEFMA), China
Petroleum Zhongyuan Oilfield (FEBIAMFEHAH) and has ever been a
management economist of China National Petroleum Corporation (B A
SRR EEEE A E]) (“CNPC”) during the period between 1969 and 1993.
He was the chairman of each of Wah Chung (HK) Limited ¥/ (&8) A&
fRA®]), Henan Shenghua Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (A& EELRLTH
fRA 7)) and Liaoning Xinmin Petroleum Company Limited during the period
between 1993 and 2004. Mr. Cheung was the deputy chairman and an
executive director of Yanchang Petroleum International Limited, a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
up to 3 September 2010 and 6 October 2010 respectively. He is currently
the chairman and an executive director of Birmingham International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also currently a
visiting lecturer of Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics, the vice
president of Hong Kong General Association of International Investment
(BBEBRRE#ERAE) and the vice president of China Petroleum Business
Coundil (FEIA M BIESES).
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Biographical Details of Directors

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yunlong, aged 62, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 18 April 2008. He is the chairman of each of
the Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) and the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination Committee.
Mr. Li graduated from the Accounting School of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (R m 8 & BUE K22 5T 226t) with a Bachelor Degree in
Economics. Mr. Li is a registered certified public accountant in the PRC and
possesses the qualification of PRC senior auditor. Mr. Li had been working
at the National Audit Office of the PRC for over 16 years in various audit
departments, and he is currently a partner of Hua Wen CPA Ltd GER &5t
BMEEF5FT) in the PRC. He is the financial consultant of various companies in
the PRC, and an independent director of Sichuan Xichang Electric Power Co.,
Ltd. (TU)IIFEEE HRDER A A, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. He is being a national financial expert of The Ministry of Science
and Technology of the PRC. He has extensive experience in legal, accounting,
auditing and finance aspects.

Mr. Shi Xun-zhi, aged 79, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 30 August 2006. He is a member of the
Audit Committee. He is a deputy minister and a professor senior engineer.
He has been awarded the Youth and Mature Scientist with outstanding
contributions by the State Council. He graduated from Petroleum Institute of
Beijing (3t 5 A HE4FT) (renamed as China University of Petroleum, Beijing)
(FEIAHRAE (465) ) in 1956 in the profession of petroleum geology.
He worked as geology engineer, associate director of the technology
division, director of human resources division, supervisor in the Ministry of
Petroleum Industry, CNPC president’s special assistant and also a member of
the Ninth Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He had been
the chairman of CNPC Sino-Russian Oil & Gas Corporation Committee and
the chairman of China National Oil & Gas Exploration and Development
Corporation (FEIAHE)EMEAR]) and the chairman of CNPA Alberta
Petroleum Center (FEIIIEAMRIASAMF L), and the president of
Northeast Asian Gas And Pipeline Forum and the president of Asia Gas
& Pipeline Cooperation Research Center of China, responsible for the oil
and gas works between China and Russia, and worked on the overseas
petroleum exploration and development as well as international cooperation
work.

Mr. Wang Guangtian, aged 50, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on 4 November 2009. He is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee, and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. He holds a master’s degree
in world economics from the Hebei University and has over 29 years of
experience in financial and administrative management. He is currently a vice
president of Guofu Group and a director and the general manager of Guofu
(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited. He is also currently an independent non-
executive director of ENN Energy Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange.
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Report of the Directors
EEHRES

The Board is pleased to submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in investments in natural gas and energy related
businesses.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the state of
affairs of the Group as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 56 to 187.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board resolved to recommend to the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Thursday, 29 May 2014 (“2014 AGM") a final dividend of HK cents 0.72
(2012: HK cents 0.65) per share to be paid on Monday, 23 June 2014 to
those shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Tuesday, 10 June 2014. The final dividend will amount to
approximately HK$36,005,000 (2012: HK$ 32,275,000).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the identity of the shareholders to attend and vote at
the 2014 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 28 May 2014 to Thursday, 29 May 2014 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2014 AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 27 May 2014.

For determining the entitlement of the shareholders to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 9 June 2014 to Tuesday, 10 June 2014 (both days inclusive) during
which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 6
June 2014.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years, as extracted from the audited consolidated financial
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 188. This
summary does not form part of the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group's revenue and results by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the Company’s share capital during the year are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) on 31 January 2002 and terminated the same at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 November 2011, details of
the Old Share Option Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the "Existing Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 November 2011 at the special general meeting
of the Company held on 23 November 2011, details of the Existing Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 32(b) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 4 November 2011, the Board adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) as an incentive to recognise the
contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to retain them for
their continuing operation and development and to attract suitable personnel
for further development of the Group, details of the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are set out in note 32(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-Laws") or the laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2013, other than those purchased by the trustee for the Restricted Share
Award Scheme adopted on 4 November 2011.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the amount standing to the credit of the
Company’s share premium account in the amount of HK$1,594,280,000
may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares, and the
Company’s contributed surplus account in the amount of HK$86,189,000
may be distributed under certain circumstances.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s major
suppliers and customers are as follows:
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None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”)) or any shareholders (who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial interests in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are as follows:

Executive Directors

XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
ZHU Yuan

GUAN Yijun

CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
LI Yunlong

SHI Xun-zhi

WANG Guangtian

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Xu Tie-liang, Mr. Zhu
Yuan and Mr. Li Yunlong shall retire from office as Directors by rotation at
the 2014 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES”
and “RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME" above and in notes 32(b) and
(c) to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2014
AGM has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Group
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"), are set out below:

Interests in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
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Notes:

1. 321,018,300 ordinary shares and 820,260,000 ordinary shares of the Company
are held through Sino Advance Holdings Limited (“Sino Advance”) and Sino
Vantage Management Limited (“Sino Vantage”) respectively, both of which
were incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and are
wholly-owned by Sino Best International Group Limited (”Sino Best”) (a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability) which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang.

2. An amount of US$4,000,000 of the US$350,000,000 5.25% senior notes of the
Company due 2018 are held through Sino Vantage.

3. These 2,500,000 shares include (1) 600,000 share options granted by the
Company to Mr. Zhu Yuan exercisable into 600,000 shares of the Company;
and (2) 700,000 restricted shares granted to Mr. Zhu Yuan pursuant to the
Restricted Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which were recorded on the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December 2013.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
At 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of every person in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register

required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, are set out below:

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
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Notes:

1. Sino Advance and Sino Vantage are wholly-owned by Sino Best which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang. Hence, Mr. Xu is deemed to
be interested in 321,018,300 ordinary shares and 820,260,000 ordinary shares
of the Company held through Sino Advance and Sino Vantage.

2. 255,060,000 ordinary shares of the Company are held by Artisan Partners
Limited (partnership) as investment manager which is wholly-owned by Artisan
Partners Holdings LP which in turn is wholly-owned by Artisan Partners Asset
Management Inc., 81% of which is owned by Artisan Investment Corporation
which in turn is wholly-owned by ZFIC, Inc.

Save as disclosed above, no other parties were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2013.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of transactions with entities which
are connected persons (as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules) of
the Company, and such transactions constitute connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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The following connected transaction that has balance at the end of the year
2013:

On 5 January 2011, the Company as borrower entered into a loan
agreement with the Lender (Note 1) and Zhongda Industrial Group Inc. and
Alta Financial Holdings Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
as guarantors (the “Guarantors”) in relation to the granting of a loan
secured by an equity pledge in the amount of HK$700,000,000 (the “Loan”)
to the Company by the Lender for five years at an annual interest rate of
3.7% payable half yearly.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has the following
continuing connected transactions:

Exempt continuing connected transactions

The following continuing connected transaction constitutes an exempt
continuing connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Appointment of Trustee for Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Trustee (Note 2) was appointed by the Company as trustee for the
administration of the Restricted Share Award Scheme adopted by the
Company on 4 November 2011. Service fee will be payable by the Company
to the Trustee according to the share award trust deed entered into between
the Company and the Trustee on 4 November 2011. The payment of the
service fees to the Trustee constitutes a continuing connected transaction of
the Company, but is exempt from reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule 14A.33(3)
of the Listing Rules.

HK$200,000 was paid/payable to the Trustee for the financial year ended 31
December 2013.
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Non-exempt continuing connected transactions

The following continuing connected transactions constitute non-exempt
continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

Provision of Natural Gas

1. Certain subsidiaries of the Group have, since 2001, entered into the
natural gas supply contracts (being the Qingyun Contract dated 23
December 2002, the Liling Contract dated 26 December 2001, the
Huimin Contract dated 23 December 2002, the Xining Contract dated
28 April 2001, the Binzhou Contract dated 1 February 2002, the Anhui
Contract dated 29 December 2004 and the Jiangdu Contract dated
25 December 2008) (“Natural Gas Supply Contracts 1”) with Suppliers
(Note 3).

The caps and actual fees paid or payable in respect of the supply of
natural gas pursuant to the Natural Gas Supply Contracts | for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:
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Actual fees paid

Caps and payable

BB ENBEMZERER

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREEFT

Qingyun Contract EEAF 95,000 18,651
Liling Contract [ErSE 680,000 416,697
Huimin Contract EREM 95,000 48,615
Xining Contract AEASF 1,800,000 1,256,586
Binzhou Contract BIMNE R 720,000 239,210
Anhui Contract ZHER 150,000 91,587
Jiangdu Contract LEE A 500,000 76,796
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Certain subsidiaries of the Group have entered into the natural gas
supply contracts (being the Taizhou Contract dated 18 December
2010, the Nantong Contract dated 24 March 2011, the Xiantao
Contract dated 28 January 2002, the Wuhan East Letter of Intent
dated 6 September 2011 and the Yinchuan Contract dated 14 March
2009 as supplemented by the supplemental agreement entered into
on 12 April 2010) (“Natural Gas Supply Contracts II”) with Suppliers
(Note 3).

The caps and actual fees paid or payable in respect of the supply of
natural gas pursuant to the Natural Gas Supply Contracts Il for the year
ended 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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Actual fees paid

Caps and payable

EBR ENRENERER

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR¥ETT

Taizhou Contract ZFMEE 560,000 129,006

Nantong Contract mimE A 300,000 158,796

Xiantao Contract Ik & @ 180,000 54,671

Wuhan East Letter of Intent RZERAEME 90,000 26,530

Yinchuan Contract RIIER 100,000 86,632
Finance Lease Agreement RIEH SR

On 23 September 2011, EZREIFR A EHE R R 2 F (Alta International
Finance Lease Limited*) (“Alta International”) as lessor entered into a
finance lease agreement with Lessee (Note 4), pursuant to which Alta
International agreed to provide Lessee with finance lease services for
the three years ending 31 December 2013.

The annual cap of the finance lease amount to Lessee for the financial
year ended 31 December 2013 is RMB230,000,000.

The actual finance lease amount advanced to Lessee for the year
ended 31 December 2013 is RMB64,313,000.

RZE——FNA=Z+=0 EXEKRA
BHERRAR([ERREE ) ELHET
BAGET (M4 A LRERERE &
o BRERRAEREE-_T—=F1+_
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HERS -
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B mAETRRZBEEHEFELRR
AR# 230,000,000 °
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#64,313,000 7T °
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Report of the Directors
EEHRES

(continued)

Notes:

(%)

China Petroleum HongKong (Holding) Limited (the “Lender”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CNPC (which indirectly owns approximately 61.84%
of the issued share capital of Kunlun Energy Company Limited (“Kunlun
Energy”) which in turn owns 49% equity interest in CCNG, which is
therefore a connected person of the Company;

Best Thinker Limited (the “Trustee”), a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Xu Tie-liang (“Mr. Xu"), an executive Director, the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, which is therefore a connected
person of the Company;

PetroChina Company Limited (86.47% of which are held by CNPC),
a company indirectly owns approximately 58.40% of the issued share
capital of Kunlun Energy, and its branch companies (“PetroChina
Group”) (“Suppliers”) which is therefore a connected person of the
Company; and

70% equity interest of |LIRESEEAR AT (Shangdong Shuanghe
Coal Mine Limited*) (“Lessee"”), 92% equity interest was owned by Sino
Advance.

On 10 December 2013, Sino Advance transferred the 92% equity
interest held in Sino Director to an independent third party, and
thereafter Lessee is no longer a connected person of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Company than terms available to independent third parties; and

have been carried out in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements

Other

Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and

with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions in accordance with
paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year and
up to the date of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 40 to 53 of the annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998 with written terms
of reference in compliance with Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yunlong (as chairman),
Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013.

AUDITORS

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan resigned as auditor of the Company on 25 May 2011,
and PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company
to fill the vacancy arising from the resignation of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 16 June 2011. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in auditor during the past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the 2014 AGM to re-appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oil And Gas Group Limited
Xu Tie-liang

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate governance standard
and procedures to ensure the integrity, transparency and quality of disclosure
in order to enhance the shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules as its own code of corporate governance.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except for the
deviations as explained below.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the responsibilities
between chairman and chief executive officer should be divided. Mr. Xu Tie-
liang is the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer in the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority for the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately
ensured by current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre
individuals with sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive
Directors.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election. The
independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but they are subject to retirement from office by rotation at least once every
three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code requires that independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors shall attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Mr. Li Yunlong, Mr. Shi Xun-zhi and Mr. Wang Guangtian,
independent non-executive Directors, did not attend the 2013 annual
general meeting of the Company held on 29 April 2013 (“2013 AGM") by
the reason of their engagement in their own official business.
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Corporate Governance Report

Code provision D.1.4 of the CG Code requires that the Company should
have formal letters of appointment for directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have formal
letters of appointment for Directors. However, the Directors shall be subject
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws. In addition,
the Directors are required to refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry and “Guidelines
for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive Directors” (if
applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing
their duties and responsibilities as Directors. Besides, the Directors are
required to comply with the requirements under statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s
business and governance policies.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other committees
(as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite another
member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to
attend. Mr. Li Yunlong, the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and
the Remuneration Committee, and Mr. Wang Guangtian, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee, did not attend the 2013 AGM due to their
engagement in their own official business.

Save as the aforesaid and in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
met all code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2013.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions as set out in the Model Code. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirmed that all Directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company,
and is responsible for setting up the overall strategy as well as reviewing
the operation and financial performance of the Group. The Board reserved
for its decision or consideration matters covering overall Group strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or re-appointment, approval
of major capital transactions and other significant operational and financial
matters. The management was delegated the authority and responsibility by
the Board for the daily management of the Group. In addition, the Board
has also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.
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(continued) (4&)

The Board currently consists of seven Directors including four executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Tie-liang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZHU Yuan

Ms. GUAN Yijun

Mr. CHEUNG Shing

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LI Yunlong

Mr. SHI Xun-zhi

Mr. WANG Guangtian

Save for Ms. Guan Yijun is the spouse of Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Board
members have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition is formed
to ensure strong independence exists across the Board. The composition of
the Board reflects the balanced skills and experience for effective leadership.
The biographical information of the Directors are set out on pages 23 to 25
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors”.

The Board decides on corporate strategies, approves overall business plans
and evaluates the Group'’s financial performance and management. Specific
tasks that the Board delegates to the Group’s management include the
implementation of strategies approved by the Board, the monitoring of
operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures, and
the ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and other
rules and regulations.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the board
remains informed and relevant.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and

provided a record of training they received for the financial year ended 31
December 2013 to the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Name of Director

TEERRE

(continued) (#)

HE-_Z—=F+_A=+—RHILEEMEES
BEZEREIIRESHEMNDT

Attending or participating in seminars/
in-house briefing relevant to

the Group’s business/director’s duties

HESSHESEER
Esps ESREAEEE NIBPERS
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A& v
Mr. ZHU Yuan K OBEE v
Ms. GUAN Yijun BERELL v
Mr. CHEUNG Shing ®ORSEE v
Mr. LI Yunlong FEERE v
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEEIFMEE v
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREAESLE v

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer
and Mr. Xu Tie-liang currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the
same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership within the
Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic planning for
the Group. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and is adequately ensured by
current Board which comprises experienced and high calibre individuals with
sufficient number thereof being independent non-executive Directors.

Non-executive Directors

The three independent non-executive Directors are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting,
finance and petroleum. With their experience gained from various sectors,
they provide strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board. Each independent non-executive Director
gives an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the
Company considered each of them is independent under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors are not appointed for specific term,
but are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 26 August 2013 (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Policy to the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and review the
measurable objectives for implementing the Policy from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives will be ascertained.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy, as appropriate, to ensure
its continued effectiveness from time to time.

Board Meetings

The Board has four scheduled meetings a year at quarterly interval and
additional meetings will be held as and when required. The four scheduled
Board meetings for a year are planned in advance. During the regular
meetings of the Board, the Board reviewed the operation and financial
performance and reviewed and approved the annual and interim results.
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board held 10 meetings. All
Directors are given an opportunity to include any matters in the agenda for
regular Board meetings, and are given sufficient time to review documents
and information relating to matters to be discussed in Board meetings in
advance.

Name of Director

SREERE

(continued) (#)
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Number of attendance

BEEpR HESERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang TR A 10/10
Mr. ZHU Yuan K EEAE 10/10
Ms. GUAN Yijun MREZLT 10/10
Mr. CHEUNG Shing & AtAE 10/10
Mr. LI Yunlong FEEEE 10/10
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEFIHEE 10/10
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREASLE 10/10

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have access to
Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

General Meetings
During the year ended 31 December 2013, 1 general meeting of the

Company, being 2013 AGM, was held on 29 April 2013.

Name of Director
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Number of attendance

BEEHE HERE
Mr. XU Tie-liang AR oA 1”1
Mr. ZHU Yuan K EEAE 11
Ms. GUAN Yijun MREZLT 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing sk ORKSEAE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FEEEAE 0/1
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEFIHEE 0/1
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREASLE 0/1

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or other general
meetings to communicate with them and encourage their participation. Mr.
Xu Tie-liang, being the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2013 AGM to answer questions and collect views
of shareholders.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Board will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
natural gas industry and/or other professional area.

The Company established the Nomination Committee with written terms of
reference on 15 March 2006 and currently consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. WANG Guangtian (as chairman) and Mr. LI
Yunlong, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEUNG Shing. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Nomination Committee are aligned with
the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The function of the Nomination Committee are to review and monitor the
structure, size and diversity of the Board and made recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Group’s strategy;
to identify qualified individuals to become members of the Board; to assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors; to review the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing the Policy, the
progress on achieving the objectives; and to make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee held
1 meeting to assess the independence of the independent non-executive

Directors and to consider the re-election of Directors.

Name of member

REES

REBRLTEEES  EEBBEERBEALY
B TR TIEER  EERNRERRT
BRIREERRARITER, AR GRS
w5 -

ARABR-ZZEZRF=ZATHAKIREEREE
€ URIEEMBELE - BRZESRAMA
BIFRTEETEALE(BEIR) RFTERE
T AR —BHRITERRRELAR - IBEZ
B & 80 B & B3R R VB R P A U R A R
B o

REZBEMEMNBREEENSEERERTA
PP ELEY ST RIS »

REZBEGZRESBN RERESTRZRE
BREEKEZTTE  YHEEROHEAEZE
RUEEBZENTEERBIELMERT  WERE
BRABKEIEFTRKE  HEBIIFRTESFZ
BYED O EERRTHRREZBRERE
HEBRZERUNAZEXERZEEETULE
FECHI(LEREIFRITRAS) AEEHIE
iR

HE-_Z—=F+-RA=1+—HIFE BE%
BERRITIRER  HEBUIFATEEZE
YENREBEEREEEH -

=

Number of attendance

REHE HESRAH
Mr. WANG Guangtian TREALE 11
Mr. LI Yunlong FERESEAE il

Mr. CHEUNG Shing
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with written terms
of reference on 13 January 2006 and currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LI Yunlong (as chairman) and Mr.
WANG Guangtian, and one executive Director, namely Mr. CHEUNG Shing.
The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made
available on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Remuneration Committee are aligned
with the code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
on the remuneration packages for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee
held 1 meeting for reviewing the remuneration packages of the Directors

and senior management.

Name of member

TERERHRE

(continued) (#)

EEME
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G WAIEEMBEEE - FHNEZESRAME
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B o
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HE F RS ERX B AR Fr M E S BiRftE

BE-Z—=F+-A=T—HILFE  HFME
BEETRTIRGH  URIEENSRERE
ZFINEFE -

Number of attendance

ME®E HEERRH
Mr. LI Yunlong FEEEAE 11
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREALSE 11
Mr. CHEUNG Shing gk RKSEAE 11

The Company has adopted the Existing Share Option Scheme on 23
November 2011. The purpose of the share option scheme is to enable
the Board to grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Group. The Board adopted the
Restricted Share Award Scheme on 4 November 2011 as an incentive to
recognise the contributions by employees and to give incentives in order to
retain them for their continuing operation and development and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Details of the Existing Share Option Scheme and the Restricted Share Award
Scheme are set out in notes 32(b) and (c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

RARZB——F+ A +=BRHREER
#ETE - BREAIEEREZRMEETSER
SEALELBERE  (FAREFEREMERR
ZHE R  EERAR T ——F+— AN
B R AR B AL SR BN R B E R BV A S FFR B
ZEB TREERFELENERERMEIAR
BREE U/KEE-THRTMEGEATL °

A BRAERT 8 KR I A 1) SR ED AT BIFHE R
iR A B ERER M 32(0) R (o)

FHRREEER AR 2013FFHR
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(continued) (4&)

The emolument payable to Directors will depend on their respective
contractual terms under the employment agreements, if any, and is fixed
by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee, the performance of the Group and the prevailing market
conditions. Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee in 1998. The Audit
Committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. LI Yunlong (as chairman), Mr. SHI Xun-zhi and Mr. WANG Guangtian.
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.

Terms of reference adopted by the Audit Committee are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor, and any questions of resignation or dismissal of such
auditor; reviewing the interim and annual reports and financial statements
of the Group; and overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
in charge of the Company’s financial reporting function and their training
arrangement and budget, and internal control procedures.

The Audit Committee meets the external auditor regularly to discuss any area
of concern during the audit. The Audit Committee reviews the interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses
not only on the impact of the changes in accounting policies and practices
but also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
the legal requirements in the review of the Company’s interim and annual
report.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings.

Name of member

SREERE

(continued) (#)

Number of attendance

REEE HEEERAE
Mr. LI Yunlong TEEEAE 2/2
Mr. SHI Xun-zhi SEFIHEE 2/2
Mr. WANG Guangtian FREMELE 2/2

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual and interim results of the Group, which were in the opinion of
the Audit Committee that the preparation of such results complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee noted the existing internal control system of the Group
and also noted that review of the same will be carried out annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established the CG Committee, with written terms of
reference, on 20 March 2012. The CG Committee comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. XU Tie-liang (as chairman), Mr. ZHU Yuan, Ms. GUAN
Yijun and Mr. CHEUNG Shing, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny and the Company Secretary of the Company, Ms.
CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella.

Terms of reference adopted by the CG Committee is aligned with the code
provisions set out in the CG Code.

The functions of the CG Committee are to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to comply
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory requirements and make
recommendations to the Board; to oversee the Company’s orientation
program for new Director; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and to review the Company’s
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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CHERRE

(continued) (4&)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the CG Committee
held 1 meeting to review the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; to review the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management; and to review the Company’s

compliance with the CG Code.

Name of member

BHEZT-—=HF+_F=+—HBHIUHBFE
XBRAZEGRTIRGE  BARANEESE
BB RER B EERSMEREABNE
DEHEEERR ) RRARBTEEE ST
K&

Number of attendance

REH®HH HEEERH
Mr. XU Tie-liang FTERR A 11
Mr. ZHU Yuan x RIEE 11
Ms. GUAN Yijun BB LT 171
Mr. CHEUNG Shing & AL 11
Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny Fryehiiyeann 11
Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella BRIEEZ 2+ 11

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s auditor is

set out below:—

Services rendered

R £

REER - B/ BRI E S0
T

Fee paid/payable

Frig ftAR 7% g ENER
HK$'000

&t

Audit services BENZRE 2,550
Non-audit services BRI 130
2,680
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
different commercial needs.

Ms. CHAN Yuen Ying, Stella (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, was
appointed as the named Company Secretary of the Company.

Ms. LAW Yin Shan, Jenny, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Chan
had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the
financial year ended 31 December 2013.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called a special general meeting. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call special general meetings.

Shareholders to convene a special general meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the Companies
Act of Bermuda. The procedures shareholders can use to convene a special
general meeting are set out in the document entitled “Procedures for
a Shareholder to Propose a Person for Election as a Director”, which is
currently available on the Company’s website.

Putting enquiries by shareholders to the Board
Shareholders of the Company may send written enquires to the Company for

the attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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(continued) (#)

RNEWE

R EEEERENEERE mE TR
ERBF RARB-FIMNBERARMERBE
HEAR—CERBAERAR(TH— ) REEREH
ABRNREFENARMERE -

FHRKRREE LT ((RZ L) BEZERRR
WEZNRIME -

NAVBEEERMC L RARIEARMENE
RN o

RiE ETRREI 202 RE - MATRBE
P-=F+-A=t—AUMBFEERETRS
ESEUNCTOEEE S35 TR

IR R AEF

REBRERAGERBREEER 2 HRMEEEK
T RRABFREZHARREMNMBIET
RBFERE - GRRRBFRGI  BRERAGHH
RBRFHAE - EFRAUNERREEREH
BRBRRERNAE -

BRRBMERREIAE

BRARBARFEGEXRBRERRDEARA
AIIRREFRNARE - BRA BIAG BRSNS
MEFHER X IRREEABRREEE ZIEF
W (XN A BEEER) -

RROESRREHES

ARARRAIMATAZ ARWERXEEESH T

ERFRBBZIBEEKME

our

FOMMRREEBRDE  2013FF5R



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

(continued) (4&)

Procedures for putting forward proposals by shareholders at
shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited,
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in giving
notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong in the case of:—

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i) any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the necessary
procedures.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a procedural or
administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all the
resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2014 AGM will be vote by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and regular communication
and reasonable disclosure of information to its shareholders.

Information of the Company is disseminated to the shareholders in the
following manner:

. Delivery of annual and interim results and reports to all shareholders;

o Publication of announcements on the annual and interim results on
the Stock Exchange website, and issue of other announcements and
shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the continuing disclosure
obligations under the Listing Rules; and

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED Annual Report 2013
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o The general meeting of the Company is also an effective
communication channel between the Board and shareholders.

Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman of the Board and the chairman of the CG
Committee, attended the 2013 AGM to answer questions of the meeting
and collect views of shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for each financial year which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and
of the results and cash flows of the Group for that year. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary steps to
safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Management had implemented a system of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance that the Group’s assets are safeguarded, proper
accounting records are maintained, appropriate legislation and regulations
are complied with, reliable financial information are provided for
management and publication purpose and investment and business risks
affecting the Group are identified and managed.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board has conducted a
review of the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness and
adequacy of the system. The Board shall conduct such review at least once
annually.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
year ended 31 December 2013.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZEHAMBES

_E
pwec

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Oil And
Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
"Group”) set out on pages 56 to 187, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ALl KB E BT B BROR R
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com

ML : +852 2289 8888 » fHE : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2013, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEXHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F6+_A=+—HILEE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
bz FHER FAT
Revenue =E 3 6 6,439,825 4,889,428
Cost of sales SHEK A (4,985,630) (3,786,974)
Gross profit EA 1,454,195 1,102,454
Other income HUA 7 37,575 34,513
Other (losses)/gains Hith (E518) Wz 8 (18,132) 54,675
Selling and distribution costs HERDHER (57,719) (44,822)
Administrative expenses T2 (218,235) (248,213)
Operating profit R 9 1,197,684 898,607
Interest income ESUON 10 99,603 76,943
Finance costs % E R 10 (114,674) (38,011)
Share of loss of a joint venture EBliH—REEEhEEE (3,212) (1,156)
Share of loss of an associate FE(E—RE 2 A A ETiE (861) (597)
Profit before taxation PR A g A 1,178,540 935,786
Taxation A 12 (240,945) (201,600)
Profit for the year F@gy 937,595 734,186
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Hibz2mkzs (EE)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A E# 7 A E 1Bk E H
Currency translation differences ERE A 111,235 47,735
Fair value changes from available- AL ENBEER T EZS)
for-sale financial assets (16,042) 22,385
Other comprehensive income, net of tax Efammi A (FkRFE) 95193 70,120
Total comprehensive income for the year FAEEP LR 1,032,788 804,306
Profit for the year attributable to: FAREE RN
Owners of the Company UNCIEZZ=PN 401,494 365,705
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR A 536,101 368,481
937,595 734,186
Total comprehensive income for FAEMEEREEEE
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company NCIEZ ZEPN 451,663 412,241
Non-controlling interests IR 2 581,125 392,065
1,032,788 804,306
Earnings per share for profit attributable to 2 F1#EA A LG % A K 5% B A
owners of the Company 15
— Basic (HK cents) — ERGEAL) 8.142 7.396
— Diluted (HK cents) —#58 (B 1) 8.062 7.343
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial BEBfT 2 fT 5T A ANER & B IS Sk 2 AR 9 o
statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MBRRE
As at 31 December 2013
W-F-=#+-A=+-A

FHRREEERATF

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B =E FET FAT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRR 16 3,712,892 2,952,712
Land use rights T e R 17 192,365 140,093
Intangible assets B EE 18 1,072,227 1,046,333
Interest in an associate R — R QB 20 6,162 6,843
Interest in a joint venture R—EEE R 21 41,231 43,393
Available-for-sale financial assets A HET S EE 22 835,011 523,674
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 24 870,710 404,754
6,730,598 5,117,802
Current assets MENEE
Inventories T8 23 185,926 224,577
Deposits, trade and other receivables e - B 5 REAMEKEIA 24 921,344 563,044
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEER AR
profit or loss MIEEE 25 145,812 134,398
Time deposits with maturity over FREEA=EA 8
three months EHER 26 795,427 731,762
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS FEEE 26 3,377,551 2,416,911
5,426,060 4,070,692
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFERFRIE 27 859,804 569,423
Receipt in advance TEWRIE 28 1,006,593 1,146,758
Short-term borrowings EHEE 29 708,500 1,160,868
Current tax payable = HE IR 105,572 67,786
2,680,469 2,944,835
Net current assets BN E SR 2,745,591 1,125,857
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRMEAE 9,476,189 6,243,659
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BRI R
As at 31 December 2013
RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

(continued) (#&)

2013 2012
—E-=fF —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iF=3 FHET FHET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Long-term borrowings RHEEE 29 954,000 1,196,000
Senior notes BERE 30 2,672,082 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIARE 31 23,960 20,829
3,650,042 1,216,829
Net assets FEE 5,826,147 5,026,830
Equity T
Equity attributable to owners NEER NEGER
of the Company
Share capital A& 32 50,007 49,654
Reserves Hif 3,497,373 3,130,137
3,547,380 3,179,791
Non-controlling interests IR FE A 2,278,767 1,847,039
Total equity M 4B 5,826,147 5,026,830
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for RAEMBHmERN

issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

Zhu Yuan
Director
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR &

As at 31 December 2013

W_ZE—=F+=-F=+—H
2013 2012
—EB—=F —ET——fF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
Mo aE T FHET
Non-current assets EREAE
Intangible assets | EE 18 1,702 1,702
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR 19 4,085,830 2,300,628
o soms:2 2302330
Current assets mENEE
Other receivables H A fE Y RIE 24 23,980 19,314
Financial assets at fair value BAFELERARS
through profit or loss HIEEE 25 33,138 51,528
Cash and cash equivalents Re kRS EFEEE 26 923,410 83,936
980,528 154,778
Current liabilities mEafE
Other payables HAb FE(5RIE 27 28,262 2,720
Net current assets neEEFE 952,266 152,058
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAB 5039798 2,454,388
Non-current liabilities SEmEAE
Long-term borrowings REEE 29 700,000 700,000
Senior notes BAERE 30 2,672,082 -
_ zamom 700000
Net assets BEFRE 1,667,716 1,754,388
Equity W
Equity attributable to owners NEEA AEGER
of the Company
Share capital file 32 50,007 49,654
Reserves (G 33 1,617,709 1,704,734
Total equity iR 1,667,716 1,754,388

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.

Xu Tie-liang
Director

Zhu Yuan
Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE_Z—=F+"A=+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
DR
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange  Share-based Non-
Share Share award Other  fluctuation compensation  Retained controling Total
aptal  premium  scheme  reserves reserve reserve profits Totd  interests equity
AR WA
B (M) Bk ERORe
Rx HOEE  FERE  EbER # B REEN 4% HihEs RabE
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn  TRr  Thr TR Thr  TAr  TEn TEr  TEn TEn
At 1 January 2012 R=5--£-f-H 49521 1,964,143 (10976) 78716 204209 13022 460840 2759475 1438629 4198104
Change in equity for 2012: TE-CERGRY:
Profit for the year ERiEH = = = = = - 365705 365705 368481 73418
Other comprehensive income: Hfp2ERA
Exchange differences on translating REENER R AR
foreign operations - - - - 24151 - - 24151 23,584 47735
Fairvalue changes from avalable- TEHEHKERATERS
for-sale finandial assets - - - 22,385 - - - 22,385 - 22,385
Total comprehensive income for the year EnaEhELE - - - DB W0 - 365705 412241 392,065 804306
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options REREENEMEORG 133 7938 - - - 2,3%) - 5,715 = 5,715
Equity-setfled share-based payments NEREENRNBER 23 - - 118 - - 4795 - 4913 = 4913
Shares purchased for share award scheme ARNEREEEERD - - (135) - - - - (13) - (139)
Capitalinjection by non-controlling interests FRRERTE = - - - - - - -9 2143%9
Dividend paid to non-controling interests XAREFHARER - - - - - - - - (193705 (193,709)
Set-off against accumulated losses (Note 33(0) BHZHER(NEID) - (400,000) il = - B = = =
Changes in the ownership interests n subsidiaris ~ MEREZSENHEAF
that do not resultin a loss of control (Note 34(@) PR TERER 2180 (I3 34(a) - - - 4309 - - - 4309 (4.309) =
Others 2t = = - b - - - b -6
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z51-f=1-H 49,654 1,572,081 (10993)  1673%4 228360 15461 1157834 3179791 1,847,039 5,026,830
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=—F+_A=1+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

(continued) (#)

DEER AR
Shares
held for
share (Note)  Exchange Share-based Non-
Share Share  award Other ~fluctuation compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  scheme  reserves  reserve  reserve  profits Total  interests equity
) HRHA
2EHE (M) EXRE EENHE
Rx  REEE  FERE  EHER fife fif  REEH 8% JoRRE REED
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thn T TEn TR TRn  FErn TRn TR TRn TEr
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-A-H 49,654 1,572,081 (10993) 167,394 228,360 15461 1,157,834 3179791 1,847,039 5,026,830
Change in equity for 2013: “E-CERGSE.
Profit for the year ERiH = - - - - - 401494 401494 536101 937,595
Other comprehensive income: Hfp2EHA
Exchange differences on translating ATENER BN ER
foreign operations - - - - 66,211 - - 66,211 4504 11235
Fairvalue changes from available- HENRAEATERD
for-sale finandial assets - - - (16,082 - - - (16,042 - (16,042
Total comprehensive income for the year EREAkGEE - - - (16080 66211 - 401494 451663 581125 1032788
lsue of shares upon exercise of share ptions REREEAEMEARND B 019 - - - (7,369) - 1518 - 1518
Equity-settled share-based payments WEREENRHAEEZAT - - 543 - - 3010 - 3613 - 3613
Shares purchasedt for share award scheme ARNEEERERN - - (54810) - - - - (54810) - (4810)
Capital injection by non-controlling interests FakER A = - - - - - - - 5138 5138
Dividend paid to non-controling interests SHRE TR ER - - - - - - - - (198,110)  (198,110)
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z-F——£+-f=1-H
IFFRARERE - - - () - - - () - )
Changes in the ownership interests n subsidiaris ~~ NEREEHIENHER T
that do not resultin a loss of control (Note 34(@) A EREZE (i3 340) - - - (921) - - - 1) (65 (355%)
Others () - - - (14,865) - - - (14,865) - (14,865)
At 31 December 2013 RZF-=F+=A=1-A 50,007 1,594,280 (65,260) 103,291 294,511 11163 1559328 3547380 2218767 5,826,147
Note: MizE -

As at 31 December 2013, other reserves mainly comprise capital reserve amounting
to HK$81,480,000 (2012: HK$81,480,000) and contribution surplus amounting to

HK$36,436,000 (2012: HK$68,711,000).

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

RZZE—=F+-"A=+—0 HioEEIEEREEA
7N f# # 81,480,000 T ( — F — — £ : 81,480,000
BT B8 A B $#36,436,0008 T( —F — — 4 :
68,711,000 7T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F6+_A=+—HILEE

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$ " 000
FET FAxT
Cash flows from operating activities KEEBHERE
Profit for the year F R 937,595 734,186
Adjustments for: HTHSIEEL AR
Taxation IR 240,945 201,600
Finance costs % E R 114,674 38,011
Interest income FEHA (99,603) (76,943)
Dividend income from listed securities EWESHZREKA (4,720) (2,447)
Share of loss of a joint venture Bl —He & EEE 3,212 1,156
Share of loss of an associate FEME—EE & A R ES1E 861 597
Bad debts written off B #sH R - 5,775
Equity-settled share-based payments LARE 2= 45 B LAt B B R 2 RT3R 3,613 4,913
Amortisation of other intangible assets HAb M & EE 1,398 659
Depreciation of property, plant and M - RERREITE
equipment 187,032 155,087
Amortisation of land use rights b {5 PR A 5 3,070 4,079
(Gains)/losses on disposals of property, HEE - BE k&l (k) 518
plant and equipment (1,116) 3,001
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets BATELEE AR B EE
at fair value through profit or loss ATEEE (W) 18,132 (54,675)
1,405,093 1,014,999
Changes in working capital: LEESHE
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets at AT EKBZARZHBEE
fair value through profit or loss (), md (29,546) 346,820
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BFERL(350) 44,084 (46,755)
Increase in deposits, trade and e - 5 REMEKEIE
other receivables 0 (220,603) (71,406)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and Z 5 N E M ZIEE A, O A )
other payables 1,513 (102,736)
(Decrease)/increase in receipt in advance TEUERIE (R A>), /0 (167,254) 124,894
Cash generated from operations BEEBEE RS 1,033,267 1,265,816
Taxation paid BEANHIE (201,446) (174,077)
Net cash generated from operating activities 484 2/ ELE 2 IR & /F58 831,821 1,091,739
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Fan niﬁﬁl)lbié‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_T—=F+_F=+—HIFE
(continued) (#)

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE FET FAET
Cash flows from investing activities KETHHRERE
Interest received B FI S 62,720 76,943
Dividend received BHARE 4,720 2,447
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE - BEREE -
equipment and land use rights and b {5 R A SR TR R A AR
prepaid construction costs (1,176,964) (731,112)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BEMEE
plant and equipment Fr8 5838 2,955 8,509
Purchases of other intangible assets BEHMEREERMER
and prepaid intangible assets BETENHKIEA (16,573) (20,153)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEAHLEVBEE
financial assets (327,379) (213,194)
Acquisition of an associate W iE —[EiEE = A A) - (7,440)
Settlement of consideration payable BEEMNRE - (51,746)
Repayment of loan to FEFE AR (BB R
non-controlling interest 12,700 =
Increase in time deposits with maturity TR AR = 16 A A 5
over three months TFFE 0 (63,665) (731,762)
Net cash used in investing activities LB EBFTAIRE 558 (1,501,486) (1,667,508)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEHHEERE
Share issued upon exercise of EATER IR AR T 21T 2 R (D
share options 15,184 5,715
Interest paid EFIE (148,818) (73,562)
Issue of senior notes BITERARE 30 2,666,000 -
New borrowings raised FTEEE 479,598 1,632,100
Repayments of borrowings EEEE (1,198,398) (636,232)
Net cash paid arising from changes in the MEA Tmﬁﬁﬁ%“
ownership interests in subsidiaries EfR e F5E 34(b) (3,556) =
Capital injection by e ST A
non-controlling interests 51,348 214,359
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests SIS T IR E (192,864) (193,705)
Purchase of own shares for share Rk 2T EIFE B AR AR (D
award scheme (54,810) (135)
Dividends paid EfE (32,275) =
Net cash generated from financing activities EYE EBNEL IR & FHE 1,581,409 948,540
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= o ~i—1
mERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z-—=F6+_A=+—HILEE

(continued) (#&)

2013 2012

—B—=£F —E——4F

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

MIsE FET FET

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B MRS EEIE R L INFRE 911,744 372,771

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A— B KESEEEE 2,416,911 2,027,915

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes b SR a2 48,896 16,225
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+Z—A=+HEEKESL

ZEEE 26 3,377,551 2,416,911

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

General information

China Oil And Gas Group Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office of the Company is at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
address of its principal place of business of the Company is at Suite
2805, 28th Floor, Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding company.
Its subsidiaries are principally engaging in investment in natural gas
and energy related business, including but not limited to piped city
gas business, pipeline design and construction, as well as transports,
distributes, sales of compressed natural gas (“CNG"”) and liquefied
natural gas (“LNG") in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The
Company and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to the “Group”.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by revaluation of certain available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It
also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed in Note 5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations

The following new standards and amendments to standards are
mandatory for the financial year beginning 1 January 2013:

Amendment to HKAS 1, “Financial statements presentation”
regarding other comprehensive income. The main change
resulting from these amendments is a requirement for entities to
group items presented in ‘other comprehensive income’ (OCI) on
the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or
loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The amendments
do not address which items are presented in OCI.

HKAS 27 (revised), “Separate financial statements”, includes the
provisions on separate financial statements that are left after the
control provisions of HKAS 27 have been included in the new
HKFRS 10.

HKAS 28 (revised), “Investments in associates and joint ventures”,
includes the requirements for joint ventures, as well as associates,
to be equity accounted following the issue of HKFRS 11.

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated financial statements” builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included within
the consolidated financial statements of the parent company.
The standard provides additional guidance to assist in the
determination of control where this is difficult to assess.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013

2

mREZE (1F)
(a) RAHITRER - LET2EARRE
rue

UTRR-_Z—=F—HA—HBHAKZ
B IR 5 T2 58 I R A 2 T AT 2R Al I A A

CHE

EEEERE 1R (BRTA) [ 5],
RNER] - FAEMEENKE -
BINEI2EH R EERSEHi
E2EHMEITERNER - RUFEAE
HERDARSENRERRZ (BN
HB) MO - L FERT L ETHARE
fEEKRE25IMIER -

FRETERE 275 (BIEFT) B
BRI E MBI BERRAE
X ZEEX TR BB G ERE 27
SRR ESIRGEXMAFTEET B RS
ZRIF 1057 &FTER

FEEER28 (RIER]) [RBtE R
ARGECERRE | BREANEEH
B EEE 1 SRBMRA AR E
HEEERARBERRIIRNAE °

EEMBREENF 1050 [HRE/MHB
BRIZENRERA - BBEEE
TSR SIERETRTRERE B8
AR RBGEE P BERRANREER
= o UL ERIIRHREIME S ATE B ART
it B 10 B B FE 2



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations (Continued)

HKFRS 11, “Joint arrangements” is a more realistic reflection of
joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and obligations of
the arrangement rather than its legal form. There are two types
of joint arrangement: joint operations and joint ventures. Joint
operations arise where the investors have rights to the assets
and obligations relating to the arrangement and hence accounts
for its interest in assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. Joint
ventures arise where the joint operator has rights to the net assets
of the arrangement and hence equity accounts for its interest.
Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is no longer allowed.

HKFRS 12, “Disclosures of interests in other entities” includes the
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entities,
including joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles
and other off balance sheet vehicles.

HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement” aims to improve consistency
and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of
fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The requirements
do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide
guidance on how it should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within HKFRSs.

Amendment to HKFRS 7, ‘Financial instruments: Disclosures’
on asset and liability offsetting. The amendments require new
disclosure requirements which focus on quantitative information
about recognised financial instruments that are offset in the
statement of financial position, as well as those recognised
financial instruments that are subject to master netting or similar
arrangements irrespective of whether they are offset.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no HKASs or HKFRSs
that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 that would be expected to have a
significant impact on the Group.

e M RAR M
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

2 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing

standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group

The following relevant HKASs, HKFRSs, amendments to existing
HKFRSs and interpretation of HKFRS have been published and are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013 or later periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

Financial instruments: Presentation —
offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities '

Recoverable amount disclosures for
non-financial assets'

Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement — novation of
derivatives and continuation of
hedging accounting '

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and  Investment entities
HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 36 (Amendment)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)

(Amendment)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts 3
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

Annual Improvement Annual improvement to 2010-2012
Projects cycle and 2011-2013 cycle ?

l Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1 January 2014
2 Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1 July 2014

g Effective for the Group for annual period beginning 1 January 2016

The Group will apply the above HKFRS, amendments to existing
HKFRSs and interpretations of HKFRS from 1 January 2014 or later
periods. The Group anticipates that the application of the above
new, revised or amended standards and interpretations have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Subsidiaries
(i)  Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

(1) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i)

Consolidation (Continued)

(1) Business combinations (Continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an
asset or liability is recognised in accordance with HKAS
39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

(2)

(3)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
in their capacity as owners. The difference between
fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on
disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

(continued) (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries (Continued)
(ii) Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

(b) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group's investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tre SRR M

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEME(E)
(Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued) (b) BEEAQT ()

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of loss of an associate’ in the consolidated
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

£ B R AG BE 2 A R U T 12 5 B S B 1B
ZMBERN A EET R - HEEW
BrREME2AWAZHUNEMEH

WARRER - W IREREE L
EHE - EREREHBEARERSE

R BE N2 L AR PR R
(B F5 AR AT HL At AR 4 4R W SRR B -
SETHE-THEREE - FRIEELR
BUAE S EE BB R R ZE S QA
(B

SENEREARERSHEMNESR
BEBRTIREZ QA ZEKRELBER
B fWEREML - SEREEEQ
B AJ Ys (o] B R B L PR T (B 2 RR A R
BEERL FZBER G BEA B
BERRER] A TR -

SEEABENRAZALETHIFE
A 2 s | B 1R (2 A SE AR I A B R
BENRzERRBRREENTBRE
MR - REIREE T IAEE - KA
ﬁﬁ@’“é?E?&iﬂﬁZﬁé%%&l\ g
BERNRGTHRERTEERE - MU

Eﬁ{%éﬁi‘ilﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ“m@( e

L RRIIREMESL 2 #E WS
BRRGABRRNER -

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(9]

Joint arrangement

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements as of 1
January 2012. Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations each investor. The Group
has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements and determined
them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s
share of losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in
the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint
ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group. The change in accounting policy has been
applied as from 1 January 2012.

There is no impact on the consolidated financial position,
consolidated comprehensive income and the consolidated cash
flows of the Group since the joint ventures are accounted for
using the equity method before.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Impairment testing of investments in associate or joint
venture

Impairment testing of the investments in associate or joint venture
is required upon receiving dividends from these investments if
the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors that
makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(i)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

3 FEE

(d)

(e)

(f)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

()

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available-for-
sale are analysed between translation differences resulting
from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other
changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

— income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEME(E)
(Continued)
(f) Foreign currency translation (Continued) (f) HMERE(E)

(i) FEE 2% E] (%)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised - FBEEZERZFEHNHE
in other comprehensive income and accumulated 2 T W e T s 30 98 37 BE 08
separately in equity in the exchange fluctuation REZT THERBEERN
reserve. 25t o

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences BEHEEBINERE  HEELE
are reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit EFN I E B REERE B s
or loss on disposal is recognised. B EEE -

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the HEBIINEBMEEZEER
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and NEERE  HEERZEINE
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the year-end BrEERBERE  WHRFER
closing rate. Exchange difference arising are recognised in HEANEERRTE - TEERE
other comprehensive income. HEBEEMKEHER -

(g) Property, plant and equipment (9) V% BEKRRZXE
Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly buildings, plant Y EE JF?i)%)SZ 1% TERFEEF
and machinery, pipelines, motor vehicles and others. All property, BB M s CREREHM AT

plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in
the consolidated profit or loss during the financial year in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTTBEBE (&)
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (9) M%E- - BERRE (E)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using

the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual

values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 12.5 to 25 years or remaining lease
period of the land where applicable

Plant and machinery 3 to 20 years
Pipelines 20 years
Others 3 to 20 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of financial position
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3(i)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated profit or loss.

Construction in progress represents asset under construction and
is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, and is
not depreciated. Costs comprise direct and indirect incremental
costs of acquisition or construction. Completed items are
transferred from construction in progress to proper categories
of property, plant and equipment when they are ready for their
intended use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the consideration transferred over
the Group interest in net fair value of the net identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree and
the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs"”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually
and more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs to sell.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise mainly exclusive rights, club
membership and computer operating system.
Exclusive rights are shown at historical cost. Exclusive
rights have definite useful lives and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line method to allocate the cost of exclusive
rights over their estimated useful lives ranging from 30 to 48
years for natural gas supply services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(h)

(@

Intangible assets (Continued)
(i) Other intangible assets (Continued)

Investment in club membership is shown at historical cost.
Investment in club membership has indefinite useful life and
is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses and is not amortised.

Computer operating system is shown at historical cost.
Computer operating system has definite useful lives and is
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the
cost of computer operating system over its estimated useful
lives of 10 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example, goodwill
or intangible assets not ready to use — are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTTHEME (&)
(Continued)
() Land use rights (j) THERARE
Land use rights are lump sum upfront payments to acquire long- T FEREERBEARARAMGRZ
term interest in lessee-occupied properties. Land use rights %%E’JEHH%A%; —IRBENTHE
relating to buildings of the Group under operating lease and HoKLEHERMERERHETHSE
finance lease arrangements are stated at cost and are amortised BiEFE R 2 - (s B S AR AT
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis to RMAEERRNIZRE R EEHEL YA
consolidated profit or loss. fretEem o
(k) Financial assets (k) HKEE
(i) Classification (i) =%
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following SESENBEESBRIEAT
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and BB ARZUBEE - BEX
receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends & & Hﬂl K18 [ Al fit 6 B IS A
on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. EonBENETRAVMBEEZ
Management determines the classification of its financial BHmE - BEERY L ERE
assets at initial recognition. MBEEERBEDH -
(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1) RATEREBEZARZHE
BE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are BAFELER AR5
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is BERFEEEZVBE
classified in this category if acquired principally for E-WEBAZEEZENR
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives REBALE - ZHBEE
are also categorised as held for trading unless they Blg eIt AR - BRIEETE
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are EE A% - BRIPTAETA
classified as current assets if expected to be settled MAOERFIEEE  WiEsT
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as RT+Z@RARNEE - 2585
non-current. ZEERHSBEARBDA
ZE - BAE S B AIERE
BE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(k)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification (Continued)

(2) Loans and receivables

(3)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s loans
and receivables comprise trade and other receivables,
time deposits with maturity over three months and
cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They are
included in non-current assets unless the investment
matures or management intends to dispose of it within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEME(E)
(Continued)
(k) Financial assets (Continued) (k) HKEEE)
(ii) Recognition and measurement (i) FEFRFE

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date-the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value, except for those
investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market, and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, which are measured at cost.
Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss category
are presented in the consolidated profit or loss within
“other (losses)/gains, net” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
as part of “other income” when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised
in equity are included in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the
effective interest method is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss as part of “other income”. Dividends on
available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as part of “other income” when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

() Impairment of financial assets

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

e  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

e A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

e The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESHBEME(E)

(Continued)
() Impairment of financial assets (Continued) () BMBEEEREE)
(i)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued) (i) UEBHEEAS R BFEEX ()

It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
portfolio of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.
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B EA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(0]

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. If a loan has a variable interest
rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

() Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(i) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to (i) above.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss-
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
profit or loss-is removed from equity and recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated profit or loss. If, in
a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in consolidated profit
or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through the
consolidated profit or loss.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in Note 3(n).

(m) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises design costs, raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less all costs to completion and
all direct costs to be incurred in selling and distribution.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for sales
and distribution of natural gas and other related products or
gas pipeline construction and connection services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. The Group
assesses at each statement of financial position date whether
there is objective evidence that the trade and other receivables are
impaired.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. In the consolidated
statement of financial position, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(q) Borrowings

(r)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and the costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Sales and distribution of natural gas

Sales and distribution of natural gas are recognised when
the gas is used by the customers. Payments received in
advance on pre-paid I/C cards that are related to sales of
natural gas not yet delivered are deferred in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Revenue is recognised when
goods are delivered to the customers.

Sales of equipment

Sales of equipment are recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the equipment
sold.

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income

Gas pipeline construction and connection fee income is
recognised using the percentage of completion method, but
when the period of construction works is short, the revenue
is recognised when the relevant construction works are
completed and connection services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(iv) Interest income

(v)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
tenant lease.

(t) Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefit costs

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by
the relevant municipal and provincial governments in the
PRC under which the Group and the PRC based employees
are required to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions,
the Group has no further obligation for the payment
of retirement and other post retirement benefits of its
employees. The assets of these plans are held separately
from those of the Group in independently administrated
funds managed by the provincial governments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS RR M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(t)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those qualifying employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance,
and who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, contributions to the
scheme by the Group and the employees are calculated as a
percentage of employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000. The retirement
benefit scheme costs charged to consolidated profit or
loss represent contributions payable by the Group in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Employee entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
payment are recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service payment as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the statement of financial
position date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or
paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTTHEME (&)

(Continued)
(t) Employee benefits (Continued) (t) EERENGE)

(iii) Share-based payments (iii) ARG BEBZ 115

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments of
the Group. The fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of share options or restricted
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options or restricted shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options or restricted shares that are
expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end
of each reporting period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options or restricted shares that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Share-based payments (Continued)

Share option scheme

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in
the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair value
of employee services received, measured by reference to the
grant date fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

Share award scheme

When restricted shares are granted, the fair value of
restricted shares are recognised as expense with a
corresponding adjustment to equity over the vesting period.

Where the Group purchases the Company’s shares from
the market, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as “shares held
for award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options and restricted shares
is considered an integral part of the grant itself, and the
charge will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

(u) Provisions

(v)

Provisions for restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Taxation

Taxation for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The taxation charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date in the countries where the Group, associate and
joint venture operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

3 FEE

(u)

(v)

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

(v) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement
of financial position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, joint venture and associate, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

3 Summary of significant accounting policies 3 FESTTHEME (&)

(Continued)

(w) Leases (w) HE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of FUF 7 HE ) 48 K B0 53 [ B 0 [2] 5 B 1
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating MAREBHHEE - HIIELEHEE -
leases. Payment made under operating leases, net of any RIS ETHE (BRI A AEERAE
incentives received from the lessor are charged to consolidated B VEH N IR EIA B S5
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. REEmAR o
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has EBER A EEAIT YRR & EHK
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified W% BERIXGBHEHESERRE
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s HE pmEAENHBRARERAS
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased MENFEEAKEEENRIBERE
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. F2BIEEEARE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management 4 BiERERE
Financial instruments by categories 4.1 RERESZEHMIA
Group £
Available- Financial Financial
for-sale assets at fair liabilities at
financial value through Loans and amortised
assets  profit or loss receivables cost
BOTE REBEER A
AHHE FS=ErPN: BXK FTEZ
BKEE ZHBEE iR BHaE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FisE FAT FAT FAT FAET
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ENBEE 22 835,011 = - =
Deposits, trade and other &e - BHREM
receivables JFEWRIR 24 - - 910,658 -
Financial assets at fair value BAFERER AR
through profit or loss ZHBERE 25 - 145,812 - -
Time deposits, bank balances THER - RITHEH
and cash kFe 26 - - 4,172,978 -
Trade and other payables BHREMENTIE 27 - - - 859,804
Borrowings fEE 29 - - - 1,662,500
Senior notes BARE 30 - - - 2,672,082
835,011 145,812 5,083,636 5,194,386
As at 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+=A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ERKEE 22 523,674 = = =
Deposits, trade and other we  BHNRHEM
receivables JEWRIE 24 = = 483,123 =
Financial assets at fair value BATELERAR
through profit or loss LTS EE 25 - 134,398 - =
Time deposits, bank balances TEHTF R~ RITHEH
and cash MRE 26 - - 3,148,673 =
Trade and other payables BoHREMENGE 27 = = = 569,423
Borrowings BE 29 = = = 2,356,868
523,674 134,398 3,631,796 2,926,291
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIEREREIRE(E)
4.1 Financial instruments by categories (Continued) 4.1 RERESzERTI A (&)
Company AT
Financial Financial
assets at fair liabilities at
value through Loans and amortised
profit or loss receivables cost
BRAYE R A
LB AR BERR STEZ
2B EE P RIR g =l
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FHTT FT FAIT
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=%F
+=—A=
Deposits, trade and other e - E’I’%&ﬁ{”@
receivables FEWFRIA 24 - 23,980 -
Financial assets at fair value BATELER AR
through profit or loss Z BT EE 25 33,138 - -
Time deposits, bank balances TEHTFR - RITHER
and cash &k 26 - 923,410 -
Other payables At FEAT FIE 27 - - 28,262
Borrowings BE 29 - - 700,000
Senior notes BERE 30 - - 2,672,082
33,138 947,390 3,400,344
As at 31 December 2012 NZE——F
+=A=+—8
Deposits, trade and other e B RHEM
receivables e IE 24 - 19,314 =
Financial assets at fair value BATESER AR
through profit or loss LS EE 25 51,528 = =
Time deposits, bank balances TEHFR - RITHERR
and cash KiRe 26 - 83,936 -
Other payables H b e FE 27 - = 2,720
Borrowings TE 29 = - 700,000
51,528 103,250 702,720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of
its business and financial instruments. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risk

(i)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect
to United States Dollar (“US$”) and Renminbi
(“RMB™). Currency risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations. In
addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. This currency exposure is managed
primarily through sourcing raw material denominated
in the same currency.

Management has set up a policy to require group
companies to manage their foreign exchange risk
against functional currency. It mainly includes
managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies
other than their own functional currencies. The Group
also manage its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange
exposures. The Group has not used any forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge its exposure.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Currency risk (Continued)

As US$ is pegged with HK$ under the Linked Exchange
Rate System, the Group has minimal exposure to
currency risk arising from US$. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is performed. As at 31 December
2013, if RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5%
against HK$, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been
HK$43,222,000 (2012: HK$37,460,000) higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Other than unlisted debt and
equity securities held for strategic purposes, all of
these investments are listed. Most of the Group's
listed investments are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on
daily monitoring of the performance of the individual
securities compared to that of the index and other
industry indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity
needs. Listed investments held in the available-for-
sale portfolio have been chosen based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly
for performance against expectations. The portfolio
is diversified in terms of industry distribution, in
accordance with the limits set by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR A

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, debt and equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to HK$145,812,000 (2012:
HK$134,398,000). Price risk arises on account of debt
and equity investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss is not material to the
Group as a whole.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets,
except for short-term bank deposits, the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
Management does not anticipate significant impact
on interest-bearing assets resulted from the changes
in interest rates because the interest rates of bank
deposits are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings
and senior notes. Borrowings obtained at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates and senior notes expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk.

Details of the Group’s borrowings and senior notes are
set out in Notes 29 and 30.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk as the interest
rate risk exposure is not significant. In order to manage
the cash flow interest rate risk, the Group will repay
the corresponding borrowings when it has surplus
funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 HIERREE(E)
4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.2 BIEREBEZE (&)
(a) Market risk (Continued) (a) WHEE (&)

(iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates on floating rate borrowings, with all other
variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit for the year by approximately

(iii) R (&)

ﬁ T—=F+=R= +f
EEHEE 2 F BRI
LiﬂiT&umm%%
AT B fth B BURIF T
Bl &= E F W% Al 45 5 BT

HK$9,332,000 (2012: HK$7,835,000). The above B, EF+#99,332,000% T
sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming (Z=— =4 :7,835,000
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the HBIT) o LIMBRE DT

statement of financial position date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis
points increase or decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the next annual statement of
financial position date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2012.
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o FFFak Bk 100 A E 2
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HIT o
(b) Credit risk (b) EFERERE

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, the debt instruments under available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these financial instruments. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks

SEZEERRETE B REERR
REAMBWK BEAATHEE
BB EEREAFESABEN
MBEENERES  TEHZ
ESRRBEERZESRTAZ
FREfE - %?IEE%HEL%ERZ%

are monitored on an ongoing basis. BHR - WHZEEERRBSE
B4 o

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of the Group’s bank R Z=ZFR_T——F+=
deposits are deposited in major financial institutions located A=+—8  SEMBRITER
in the PRC and Hong Kong, which the management believes HHEAVNRFBEERREEZEES
are of high credit quality without significant credit risk. The EE BEERA ;Z%%%%F
Group's bank deposits as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 Eges BrEsESXEEARK

were as follows: R-BE—=FK—-F _¢+_

A=+—8H  SBZRTFHRN
™~
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

4

HREEEE (&)
42 BEEBREE(H)

(b) FEmEE (&)

2013 2012

= —E—_4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET BT

State-owned banks HEIFET 1,918,820 2,037,369
Listed banks ETRTT 2,115,172 955,588
Other banks EAniRTT 137,193 153,832
4,171,185 3,146,789

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. Credit risk
arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and excludes cash on hand of HK$1,793,000
and HK$1,884,000, as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
respectively. Credit risk also arises from outstanding trade
and other receivables from customers and a number of
counter parties.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
with exposure spread over a number of counter parties and
customers.

The Group generally requests advances from customers.
In circumstances of credit sales, to manage the credit risk
in respect of trade and other receivables, the Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers
with appropriate credit history and the Group performs
credit evaluations of its customers, and generally does not
require collateral from the customers on the outstanding
balances. Based on the expected recoverability and timing
for collection of the outstanding balances, the Group
maintains a provision for impairment of receivables and
actual losses incurred have been within management’s
expectation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(c)

Debt instruments held by the Group are normally only in
liquid securities quoted on a recognised stock exchange,
except where entered into for long-term strategic purposes.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The Group does not provide any other guarantees which
would expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s Board when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual
maturities at the statement of financial position date of the
Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the statement of financial
position date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay:

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.2 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

4 BGHEMRERE(F

4.2 BiEBREE (&)

() mEEZEE (&)

Total Less than
Total contractual 1 year Between Between
carrying undiscounted oron 1to2 2to5
amount cash flow demand years years
BHRITH 1R
REAE RERELT RERXM 122 2Z5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FTHT THT FHT THT
Group 58
As at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=%F
+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables B REMEMER 859,804 859,804 859,804 - -
Borrowings 1= 1,662,500 1,763,142 761,629 293,959 707,554
Senior notes BERE 2,672,082 3,329,593 142,406 142,406 3,044,781
5,194,386 5,952,539 1,763,839 436,365 3,752,335
As at 31 December 2012 RZZ——F
+=A=+—-A
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMERR 569,423 569,423 569,423 = =
Borrowings E1=E 2,356,368 2,529,716 1,229,304 299,778 1,000,634
2,926,291 3,099,139 1,798,727 299,778 1,000,634
Company RF
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=ZA=+—~H
Other payables Hofth R BR X 28,262 28,262 28,262 - -
Borrowings &E 700,000 759,354 25,900 25,900 707,554
Senior notes BERE 2,672,082 3,329,593 142,406 142,406 3,044,781
3,400,344 4,117,209 196,568 168,306 3,752,335
As at 31 December 2012 RZZ——F
+-A=+-H
Other payables Hft FEAT R R 2,720 2,720 2,720 = -
Borrowings 1= 700,000 787,413 25,900 25,900 735,613
702,720 790,133 28,620 25,900 735,613
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIEREREIRE(E)

4.3 Capital risk management 43 EXEKBER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditure and projected strategic investment opportunities. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, repurchase
the Company’s shares, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of available cash and
cash equivalents and current ratio as shown in and derived from
the consolidated statement of financial position. The table below
analyses the Group's capital structure:

KREZEAEEIZARARERE
BREEERQE 2N URBERK
RERERRBHEMESRTE TR
M YR REEARBARDE
D ¥

SEEERE MR N EEEARRERE
VWREBEBEZARESHELRER
M~ BRIRBHANE N RIEHE
BRERE  FAHEARHX MAHER
BRI EREMERECEARERK
RO - SRFVAFABREARE &
BREHBEXNTRRZIBESHE
EERFRD  ARRE®RER - 3
TR SIHEBEENR D ET -

SEIRBEAMBARRARIRREE
Fiszr RS KRS FEER KR
PULERERER - TRAKEERHE
Bz

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREFEER
(HK$'000) (F%mT) 3,377,551 2,416,911
Current ratio (Current assets mENLLZE (R B & ERR
divided by current liabilities) AmEha &) 2.02 1.38

The Group's strategy is to maintain the current ratio above 1.00
and have sufficient cash and cash equivalents to support the
operations and development of its business in the long term.

SE 2R EAIMELL R RFFAE1.00
Kb YEEREHNZRERREE
BRE  UXKEEBHRELER
B -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 EBIERER(E)
4.4 Fair value estimation 4.4 DAFEMGE
(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (i) HURFEIEZEMTA

The following table presents the carrying value of the TREJRUBHRAKXBBPER

financial instruments measured at fair value at the statement BB HREENETR /T

of financial position date across the three levels of the fair B BEIMAEZAFE=E

value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: BRHB - LATFEIRzE/MI

Disclosures, with the fair value of each financial instruments BE7EREE MEEMIAEZA

categorised in its entirety based on the lowest level of input FEAHZATETFEBEAZ

that is significant to that fair value measurement. =ERE R AT MEE DL -

The levels are defined as follows: FIREZEBIRAT :

e Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using o F—EXE&EEER) : U
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for 5l B T EE B I% TR
identical financial instruments. BE(RERAB)FEATF

& o

e Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in o FEoRER:LEUEmTA
active market for similar financial instruments, or using TERTISM®E - ARG ER
valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are fir (E /R AT = K A BUE
directly or indirectly based on observable data. T E Bk 5 AR B R R

BR)FTEAFE -
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIEREREIRE(E)
4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued) 4.4 AFEE (E)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) (i) HURFEIRZEMTA (&)

. Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is
not based on observable market data.

E=ER(REER) :
B BN (H o A A B
57530 3¢ AT 45 00 o
A)EHEATE -

Group £
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-BR FBR EZER fst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET FET
As at 31 December 2013 R-_ZT—=%+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets:  AJ{H EBEEE -
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 2 - - 2
— Listed debt instruments — EmEBIA 644,559 - - 644,559
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFLEMmEBIA - 450 - 450
Financial assets at fair value BATECER AR HBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 86,457 - - 86,457
— Listed debt instruments —tmEKTIA 31,888 - - 31,888
— Unlisted debt instruments —FLEMmEBIA - 27,467 - 27,467
762,906 27,917 - 790,823
As at 31 December 2012 N-_B——F+-A=+—H
Available-for-sale financial assets:  AJfH EBIEEE -
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 2 - - 2
~ Listed debt instruments — FHEHIA 333,222 - - 333,222
— Unlisted debt instruments —FEmEBIA = 450 - 450
Financial assets at fair value BATELER AR MBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — ERARE 74,436 = = 74,436
— Listed debt instruments — EmEBIA 32,833 = = 32,833
— Unlisted debt instruments —JFLEMmEBIA = 27,129 = 27,129
440,493 27,579 - 468,072
FMRREEERAR 2013553



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB RME
(continued) (4&)
4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)  Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

4 BBREAREE(E)
4.4 AFEG )

(i) HUR-FEIFRZZHTA (E)

Company NG|
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—BIX EZEIR EZER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FHET FHET
As at 31 December 2013 R=ZE—=F+=-A=+—H

Financial assets at fair value BEATELSES AR IBEE :
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — FmRARE

As at 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+=R=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BATZ SR NRZMBEE
through profit or loss:
— Listed equity investments — LR E

During the year, there were no transfers between
instruments in Level 1 and Level 2.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

(a

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1. Instruments included
in level 1 comprise primarily Hong Kong and Dow
Jones equity and debt investments classified as trading
securities or available-for-sale.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

(continued) (#)

4 MBEBREE(E)

4.4 AFV{EMGE (H)

()

URFES @M T A (&)

(a)

(b)

F—RBRemIA

MNRFBERTISE B 2 5 B
TRAZAHEREBEERZ
MISMETE - JIEE™
15 T5 e PTE8 53 % E BRAE 32
HFT - BB RIEA 1T
EEE - RERFIREH
BREREZTS - MAH
BERERKEETZEER
FRPZER 2R - KE
PR IS B ET A 2 T 5
BERERERE -ZFTA
BWIIRE—BR - KIN A
F-ERZIRAIZBES
BRXIBEFNAHLER
HFHEE R BETERE
T

FE_BRERMIE

REEERMISEBENS R
TEBIZGIMTET R
AFEFAGEERMEE °
HERTEEMATBREM
HBER(E)  BE= KRB
FENFEMEET - T2 —
SEITAMNAFENEAT
BERBABBERAHRY
B BzesmTANAFE =
Bx -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

4 Financial risk management (Continued)

4.4 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other

than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments, including non-current assets carried at
cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their
fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial
position date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price (i.e. level
1-highest level). The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques.

The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing
at each statement of financial position date. Quoted market
prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for
long-term borrowings. Other techniques, such as estimated
discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for
the remaining financial instruments.

The carrying values less allowance for impairment of
current receivables and of current payables are a reasonable
approximation of their fair values. Estimated discounted
cash flows at the current market interest rate are used to
determine fair value for these financial instruments (i.e. level
3-lowest level).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

4 Financial risk management (Continued) 4 BIEREREIRE(E)

45 EHEBBEERMBER

4.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

WREHE  RHRTEFEEER
PR RN mE M IEEEM T

The following financial assets are subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements

of the Company.

Gross

Gross amounts
of recognised

amounts of financial liabilities

Net amounts of
financial assets

recognised set off in the presented in the
financial statement of statement of
assets financial position financial position
REIBARR R RE BRI R
TR e 8 ATHERR 25 B
BEAR B EEEE EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THET THEx
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=A=+—H
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries &ML/ (FER) Hii/EB A AIFE 4,168,825 (82,996) 4,085,829

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial assets

Gross amounts
of recognised
financial liabilities
set off in the
statement of
financial position

Net amounts of
financial assets
presented in the
statement of
financial position

RIS IR & RIBIIRE
HERE TS K HFTRER 25|88 %
LEHE BB aERE EEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHEL
As at 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF+=A=+—H
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries  FEU/(FERT) BB A RIZUE 2,365,859 (65,232) 2,300,627

For the financial assets and liabilities subject to enforceable
master netting arrangements or similar arrangements above, each
agreement between the Company and the counterparty allows
for net settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities
when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such
an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross
basis, however, each party to the master netting agreement or
similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts
on a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

FhE At AT SR BT RS E LB
FRUBBRBROMBEERAEM
5 AREXZHFRITNZRBGH
EEHBREBERFRELLER - BFF
FREEABMBEERAE X
BEHBRENBERT  MBKEERE
BEXEREBEEELEE - A - 2%
BREHEIBURZENERINTE
A BERBONBEATERERER
FREELEMERREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS AR MR

(continued) (4&)

5

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS.
The assumptions, estimates and judgements are based on historical
experience and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. While the management reviews their judgements,
estimates and assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom
equal to the estimates.

Estimates and judgements are regularly evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The matters described below are considered to be the most critical
in understanding the estimates and judgements that are involved in
preparing the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(@) Estimation of impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Property, plant and equipment and goodwill
are also reviewed for possible impairments whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Determination as to whether and how
much an asset is impaired involves management estimates and
judgements such as future prices of natural gas. However, the
impairment reviews and calculations are based on assumptions
that are consistent with the Group’s business plans. Favourable
changes to some assumptions may allow the Group to avoid the
need to impair any assets in these years, whereas unfavourable
changes may cause the assets to become impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(b) Estimation of useful lives and residual values of property,

(c)

plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and residual values for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technological advancement and
innovations in the natural gas industry. Management will adjust
the depreciation charge where residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual
values and therefore depreciation in the future periods.

Estimate of natural gas consumption

Revenue for natural gas supply may include an estimation of
the natural gas supplied to the customers of which actual meter
reading is not available. The estimation is done mainly based on
the past consumption records and recent consumption pattern
of individual customers. As of the statement of financial position
date, the overall billed natural gas sales are in line with the natural
gas supplied to the customers.

e M HRAR MR

(continued) (#&)

5 BREFHEETRHE (&)

(b) % BERREZERFHRFER

(c)

BEEME

SEEEBHHREYE  BFE IR
el ERFHRAGER-
S ET D ERHBREIEE RIER Y
X BEARBZERAUERFHR
RERBEMNELEBRMIEL o thAF
ARARARITENRRBER L AIFM
RNIgEE - MFHREEELAGE
Zh ERERHBRTEER M
OB BT LB SRR RS E
MIERIEUEEE - BERFBREE T
HAFTRSREETR - FH DB
BYAFEFHRRREEEE TR
IR AR R AR HER T -

ARRARZ b5t

AARMEZ WA R G BIEE HET
EFMARERSEREREEZX
ARAEMT - ZEEEUERNR
FiBERELSE I MERARARK
e RNPBHRRALY  EBAKRNRX
ARHERBREERTEPZRARA
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

5 Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(d) Estimation of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

(e)

Where the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets recorded
in the consolidated statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation
techniques including the market approach based on a price/
book multiple derived from comparable companies. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required
in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions about these
factors could affect the reported fair value of the available-for-sale
financial assets.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income
taxes in each of these jurisdictions. There are transactions and
calculations during the ordinary course of business for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current income
tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
When the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and
taxation charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Revenue and segment information

The Group’s principal activities are sales and distribution of natural
gas and other related products and provision of construction and
connection services of gas pipelines in the PRC. Revenue for the year
comprises the following:

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)
6 WARDEER
SETENFHERBERARKE A

MERARRTBERERRE BRERER
BRT - FRARABBEATEIA

2013 2012
—E—=£ —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET

Sales and distribution of natural SHE MR R AR R EMABREE R
gas and other related products 5,398,517 4,309,717
Sales of LPG HER(ICAME - 84,197

Gas pipeline connection and PASRE 1B B S s AR TS A

construction services income 1,041,308 495,514
6,439,825 4,889,428
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 WARDEER (&)

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance focuses more specifically on sales of natural
gas and gas pipeline construction and connection.

The Group has presented the following three reportable segments:
—  sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products
—  sales of LPG

- gas pipeline construction and connection

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above
reportable segments.

The executive directors assesses the performance of the business
segments based on profit before taxation without allocation of other
(losses)/gains, net, interest income, finance costs, share of loss of
a joint venture, share of loss of an associate and other unallocated
corporate expenses, which is consistent with these in the financial
statements. Meanwhile, the Group does not allocate assets or liabilities
to its segments, as the executive directors do not use this information
to allocate resources to or evaluate the performance of operating
segment. Therefore, the Group does not report a measure of segment
assets and segment liabilities for each reportable segment.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided
to the executive directors for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31 December
2013 and 2012 is set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 WAKRDBEBER (F)
For the year ended 31 December 2013: HE-_Z—=F+-"A=+—HIFE:
Sales and
distribution Gas
of natural pipeline
gas and construction
other related Sales and
products of LPG connection Group
HEREX
RAR K HA HER RREE
HBER AR BERER %8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER TET

Segment revenue and results AHMBAREE

Sales to external customers IPEFIHERE 5,398,517 = 1,041,308 6,439,825
Segment results DEERE 779,373 - 451,580 1,230,953
Interest income L BIA 99,603
Fair value losses on financial assets ~ RAFEFBRFARZ

at fair value through profit or loss B EEAFEERE (18,132)
Finance costs HMBER (114,674)
Share of loss of a joint venture EE—ReEtEEE (3.212)
Share of loss of an associate Fefh—ME AR EE (861)
Unallocated corporate expenses APEEERR (15,137)
Profit before taxation BB A& T 1,178,540
Taxation IR (240,945)
Profit for the year F AR 937,595
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(continued) (#&)

6 Revenue and segment information (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012:

6

WAR D EBER (&)

BE Z——H+_A=t+—"BIFE:

Sales and
distribution Gas
of natural pipeline
gas and construction
other related Sales and
products of LPG connection Group
THE R
RARKEA HER( mRE"
MR ER AHR B RER 5B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THT THT
Segment revenue and results DTBRAREE
Sales to external customers NP PIEETE 4,309,717 84,197 495,514 4,889,428
Segment results AEFE 648,716 (7,255) 217,758 859,219
Interest income FISHA 76,943
Fair value gains on financial assets R AFELBZARZ
at fair value through profit orloss IS EEATERE 54,675
Finance costs BB (38,011)
Share of loss of a joint venture Eih—RaEtFER (1,156)
Share of loss of an associate ML —REE X EE (597)
Unallocated corporate expenses ADEEEHRS (15,287)
Profit before taxation BREtATR A 935,786
Taxation i1 (201,600)
Profit for the year FRET 734,186



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
trE SRR M

(continued) (#&)

Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6 WAKRDEBER (&)
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10.0% of the B ZT—=%KkKr_ZT——%+_AH1
Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012. =S+—BIEFE  SEREIINBEPRE

B2 W AR ERER10.0% °

Analysis of the Group's revenue and results by geographical market SEERMETSE D 2 o BWANREEZ
has not been presented as over 90.0% of the Group’s revenue and AMATER  BAKEBER0.0% 2K
business activities are conducted in the PRC. AR EBEEN N BT o
Substantially all of the non-current assets are located in the PRC. BERBIEREEESDMNAE o
Other income 7 HAg A
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Dividend income from listed securities &S 2 B A 4,720 2,447
Government subsidies BT e Bh 14,922 18,411
Rental income HEBUA 7.242 6,639
Service income BRFS A 7,618 3,932
Others Eith 3,073 3,084
37,575 34,513
Other (losses)/gains 8 Hith(E#8) WH
During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances Bz _Z2—=%k_ZT——_+_AH1
represent the fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets at fair value =+—BIEFE #BRELAZAFELERD
through profit or loss. AR B EENRNTE (BE), s -

FHRREBEERART 2013FF5R
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

Operating profit

Operating profit has been arrived
following items:

after charging/(crediting) the

RN E R GEA) TIISA

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRAN(TEEESME (EE11)) ¢
remuneration (Note 11)):
Salaries and wages FERIE 207,567 156,332
Equity-settled share-based payments PARE s 45 DARR (0 A AR 2 (5K 2,717 4,853
Retirement benefits scheme RIREHET SR
contributions 37,380 44,365
247,664 205,550
Minimum lease payments under HETHREFLERE &EHE
operating leases for leasehold
land and buildings 14,929 11,344
Cost of inventories recognised AR AN S TR
as expense 4,407,747 3,238,575
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEE 2 1,650 1,534
Depreciation of property, plant M - BB REETE (MiEE16)
and equipment (Note 16) 187,032 155,087
Bad debts written off AR = 5,775
Amortisation of land use s AR SE (P2 17)
rights (Note 17) 3,070 4,079
Amortisation of intangible mEEEE (MIEE18)
assets (Note 18) 1,398 659
(Gains)/losses on disposals of property, HEWE « MER&ZREZ (W), EiE
plant and equipment (1,116) 3,001
Net exchange gains b 3 2 F /E (20,132) (3,172)
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10 Interest income and finance costs

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

10 MEWARTBEH

2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Interest income from: FlEMWAKE :
Bank deposits HRITIFH 62,121 47,495
Advance to Lessee (Note 24(c)) Bk T AT (FEE 24(0) 36,466 28,456
Loan to a third party (Note 24(e)) BRT—2F =7 (M3£24@e)) 1,016 992
99,603 76,943
Finance costs: MEEM
Interest on: B
Bank borrowings, wholly repayable ERAFABHEECRITEE
within five years (47,775) (46,947)
Other borrowings, wholly repayable ERAFANEHEECHMEE
within five years (26,345) (26,615)
Senior notes, wholly repayable ARAFERNEHEEZELRE
within five years (102,880) -
Less: Amounts capitalised B BN bEEE 62,326 35,551
(114,674) (38,011)
Finance (costs)/income, net B (BA), WA - F5E (15,071) 38,932

Amounts capitalised are borrowing costs that are attributable to the
construction of qualifying assets. The average interest rate used to
capitalise such borrowing cost was 5.2% (2012: 4.8%) per annum for
the year ended 31 December 2013.

BEXRbeBEARKEERAEREEZMEE
REK - BE-—FE—=F+-"F=+—Hit
FE - BRNMCEREBERAFMANTESF
FEES2% (ZFT——F :48%) °

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

11 Directors’ and senior management’s 1M EBREREEEZHE
emoluments
Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December BE2—_Z—=%+-A=+t—HILFEZ
2013 were as follows: ZEEMEFBOT
Salaries, Retirement Equity-
allowances benefits settled
and benefits scheme share-based
Fees in kind contributions payments Total
e DEREEH
EER BRI PNdnips)
e B sTEMR  ERZNR b
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHExT THET THET FHET
Executive directors: HITES
Xu Tie-liang SRR 120 2,880 15 - 3,015
Cheung Shing KK 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun FAstAE 120 585 15 - 720
Zhu Yuan xR 120 576 - 896 1,592
Independent BUKHTES !
non-executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi SEFI%A 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long TEEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian TEH 120 - - - 120
Total et 840 4,041 30 896 5,807

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013



11 Directors’ and senior management’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

11 EBNSREBE2ME (&)

Details of remuneration of directors for the year ended 31 December BE-_Z——HF+-_A=+—BHLHFEZ
2012 were as follows: EEMeFBRT ¢
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share-based
Fees in kind  contributions payments Total
e PN i
ALK& RRAE A LARR R 5
ik BHa Bl B2 HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAxT FAT
Executive directors: BITES !
Xu Tie-liang SRR 120 2,880 12 = 3,012
Cheung Shing KK 120 - - - 120
Guan Yijun BEE 120 585 14 = 719
Zhu Yuan K R 120 841 - 60 1,021
Independent BUKHTES
non-executive directors:
Shi Xun-zhi S FI%N 120 - - - 120
Li Yun-long TEEE 120 - - - 120
Wang Guang-tian FEH 120 - - - 120
Total EEt 840 4,306 26 60 5,232

During the year, no remuneration was waived by any directors (2012:

Nil).

FA METAEETHEFM(—FT—=

2.

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R
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(continued) (#&)

11 Directors’ and senior management’s 1M EBRSREEE2ME (&)

emoluments (Continued)

EEREERTFHMEES  —F (=22 —=
F:—R)BARES  HEMWFBR EX
WE - HH=Z(—F——F: MZ) 2%

Of the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the Group, two
(2012: one) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the above disclosures. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2012: four) individuals were as follows: BHEEB T -
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TR
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUREDH= 2,951 3,470
Equity-settled share-based payments DA R A5 DARR D R 2 (55K 2,825 2,634
Retirement benefits scheme contributions ~ RKBHIFTEIf R 156 71
5,932 6,175
The number of employees whose remuneration fell within the following BATHMEHEE 2 EEABWT :
band was as follows:
Number of employees
EEAE
2013 2012
—B—=£ —E——4F
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /7T 2 1,500,000 7T - 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /& 7T £ 2,000,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 % 7C 2 3,000,000 %8 7T 1 1

HE_Z—=Ffk=-_FE—=-F+=A

No emoluments were paid or payable to the directors and above

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the financial years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Directors’ and senior management’s
emoluments (Continued)

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior management fell
within the following bands:

e M RAR M

(continued) (#)

11 EBNSREBE2ME (&)

BUATHeEENENSREREKEH
PFETS -

Number of employees

EBEAE
2013 2012
—E—=5F ===
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000 5 7t 6 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 J&7E. 2 2,000,000 5 7T 2 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 ¥ 5T.2 3,000,000 47T 1 1
Taxation 12 %18

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the year (2012: Nil).

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate income tax laws,
regulations and implementation guidance note, subsidiaries in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax rate at
25% (2012: 25%). Certain subsidiaries are entitled to tax concessions
and tax relief whereby the profits of those subsidiaries are taxed at a
preferential income tax rate of 15% (2012: 15%).

MR EERAEE L ERREMNASNE
BMER BRG] - WAL E BB
EREREER (22 —ZF  |) -

RIBFAEEPBECEMBSRE - GKOIRERE
AN R B AR B A RIE25% (=
T—F : 25%) 2R RN R ERE
e BETHBARZARKERARER
Bt ZEMB AR Z %A EEmER
FREN5% (ZFB——4F : 15%) AFi o

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET—CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current tax: AREAFIE

PRC corporate income tax A (b SRS AR
— current year — R 238,318 195,099
Deferred tax (Note 31) EIERIA (P72 31) 2,627 6,501
Taxation BiIE 240,945 201,600

There is no tax impact relating to components of other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

BE—ZE—=F+=-A=+—HILEE -
G B E At 2 U E A K BP0 2 TS &
B(=Z2——=—F:8)o

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R
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e F T E
(continued) (#&)
12 Taxation (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax

12 HIE (&)

8 BRR B AT F) 2 B0 TR B4 AR O A o i
MZMEFOREEEZERSRER

rate applicable to profits of the Group as follows: K
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FBT
Profit before taxation BRA% A& A 1,178,540 935,786
Tax calculated at the applicable rates 1R AR 5 AR 2 @A
in the tax jurisdictions concerned HEE 2B 301,881 223,732
Tax effect of income not subject EERBIMAZ RIS E
to taxation (34,857) (14,835)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A FIFRFIS 2 FRIEHEE
for tax purpose 19,356 29,013
Tax effect of tax concessions BEME R TE (45,435) (36,310)
Taxation I8 240,945 201,600
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 25.6% (2012: 23.9%). TRMNEFIGRER25.6% (ZF——4F :

The increase is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the respective jurisdictions.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

(continued) (#)

Dividend 13 RE
2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Final dividend proposed at R AR HARR B &A% 0.72 1L
HK cents 0.72 (2012: HK cents 0.65)  (ZZ—=%F : 0.65&{l)
per share (Note): (M%) - 36,005 32,275
Note: B EE
A final dividend relating to the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to HEZZ——_F+A=+—HIEFEZREAR
HK$32,275,000 was fully paid on 21 May 2013. B£.32,275,000 8 tER=—E—=FRAA=-+—H
BEEAT -
The board of directors proposed a final dividend of HK cents 0.72 per ordinary EFZRR T WNF=A=-+HAERKLEE
share for the year ended 31 December 2013 on 25 March 2014 (2012: HK cents —E—=Ft+ZA=FT—HLEFEZRHARES
0.65 per ordinary share) amounting to a total of approximately HK$36,005,000 BREBRO72BIN(ZZE—ZF : FREBR
(2012: HK$32,275,000). The amount is based on approximately 5,000,716,000 0.657%&1ll) * & #*£#936,005,000/8 L (=& ——
(2012: 4,965,406,000) shares issued as at 25 March 2014. This proposed final G :32,275,000870) c e IHER T M
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable as of 31 December 2013, but F=A-THHB &R 45,000,716,000 A%
will be recorded as a distribution of retained earnings for the year ending 31 (=T — =% : 4,965,406,000%) 5% - &K
December 2014. HREX TRRAR - T—=F+—"A=+—H
ZREABKRE AU RBEE=T—NFE+=A
=T —HIEFEZRBEFIARK -
Included in the proposed final dividend is an amount of approximately EZAHARSPGT ALEEA 483,000 (=ZF
HK$483,000 (2012: HK$122,000), being the dividends to the shares held by the — 4% :122,000/87T) ' BIRBARR - ——
trustee for the benefits of the eligible grantees under the restricted share award F+— AN B RARR G 1R 0 B 8IS
scheme of the Company adopted on 4 November 2011. ERR A ATz T B FEARTR B AR G5 B AR
5 o
Loss attributable to owners of the Company 14 XREEAEGEE

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of
approximately HK$130,884,000 (2012: profit of the Company of
HK$8,758,000).

DEIEBEAEGERETETARRGNHG
R ARIE 2 EE# 130,884,0008 7T (==
— 4 : % 7¥8,758,000#7T) °

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R
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(continued) (4&)

15 Earnings per share

(a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$401,494,000 (2012: HK$365,705,000) and
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less shares
held under share award scheme during the year of approximately
4,931,092,000 shares (2012: 4,944,502,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$401,494,000 (2012: HK$365,705,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of approximately
4,979,945,000 shares (2012: 4,980,319,000 shares) which is
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue less
shares held under share award scheme during the year plus the
weighted average number of dilutive potential ordinary shares
in respect of share options of approximately 46,865,000 shares
(2012: 35,487,000 shares) and the effect of awarded shares of
approximately 1,988,000 shares (2012: 330,000 shares) deemed
to be issued at no consideration if all outstanding share options
granted had been exercised.

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013
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(a)

et BB RERZBFIR T ERN R A%
B AFE(R & BE F 49 401,494,000 75
7t (==& — — £ : 365,705,000 7T )
RENBBITLARINEFHECH
EFERNRBER G BB EIFTERG)
494,931,092,000f%( = & — = 4 :
4,944,502,000 f%) °

R EEREBEFETDERA A
%A A B 5 B% 1 49401,494,000
Br( =% — = F : 365,705,000
JC) - REANE LTS E RN T
B1#74,979,945,000 % (=T — — 4 :
4,980,319,0000%) + BN E 21T L AR
TN EUR AR IRAR () SR E) AT B PR
FRM M EREBTE RITEEREE
TEMERAEASREZTITZBTE
S8 I3 IR NN AE 45 2049 46,865,000 AR
— & — — £ :35487,000% ) } 2
A% 1D 491,988,000k (= F — — 4 :
330,000 %) 2 £ -
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(continued) (#)

16 Property, plant and equipment 16 ¥1%  BENEE
Plant and (Note (i)  Construction
Buildings ~ machinery Pipelines Others in progress Total
(PHEE ()
BT BB RS B Hfy  #RIRE st

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

As at 1 January 2012 R=EB-—%-H—H

Cost 5% 316,368 547,453 1,172,298 259,065 497,298 2,792,482
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (43,926) (110,505) (230,153) (93,315) = (477,899)
Net book value FEFE 272,442 436,948 942,145 165,750 497,298 2,314,583

Year ended 31 December 2012 HZE=Z--5+=f

=t—HLEFE

At 1 January 2012 R-E-——%—f—H 272,442 436,948 942,145 165,750 497,298 2,314,583

Currency realignment B 4,466 7,163 15,445 2,676 7,758 37,508
Additions AE 18,391 2,215 11,449 39,814 695,349 767,218
Transfers =4 111,202 74,067 277,948 38,258 (501,475) -
Disposals HE (3,193) (3.304) (4,629) (384) = (11,510)
Depreciation for the year FRME (15,551) (39,431) (60,254) (39,851) - (155,087)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=A=1+—H 387,757 477,658 1,182,104 206,263 698930 2,952,712

As at 31 December 2012 RZB-Z%+ZfA=+-H

Cost PR 447,204 627,331 1,475,547 337,416 698,930 3,586,428

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (59,447)  (149,673)  (293,443)  (131,153) - (633,716)
Net book value REFE 387,757 477,658 1,182,104 206,263 698930 2,952,712

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

16 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16 Y% - MERRME (&)
Plant and (Note (i)) Construction
Buildings  machinery Pipelines Others  in progress Total
(K (1))
BF BERES BE Hitt  EEIR At

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET FET TET TER

Year ended 31 December 2013 HBEZE=-F—=f

TZA=t+-HLEE

At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=%—F—H 387,757 477,658 1,182,104 206,263 698,930 2,952,712

Currency realignment BHHE 9,381 11,556 28,600 4,955 16,047 70,539

Additions hE 1,990 17,598 - 61,941 796,983 878,512

Transfers R 35,438 31,446 230,727 3,906 (301,517) -

Disposals HE (320) (116) - (1,403) - (1,839)

Depreciation for the year FRTE (18,273) (47,316) (71,941) (49,502) = (187,032)

At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+=A=+—H 415,973 490,826 1,369,490 226,160 1,210,443 3,712,892

As at 31 December 2013 R=B-=%+=A=t+-H

Cost B 495,128 691,237 1,741,973 407,828 1,210,443 4,546,609

Accumulated depreciation ZEMHE (79,155)  (200,411)  (372,483)  (181,668) - (833,717)

Net book value REFE 415,973 490,826 1,369,490 226,160 1,210,443 3,712,892

Notes: sk -

(i)  Others mainly represent motor vehicles, furniture, fixtures and equipment, (i) HtEBHEAE - KM EERER
and tool and moulds with net book values amounting to approximately EITENUEKER: REFED LD
HK$132,106,000 (2012: HK$123,306,000), HK$48,818,000 (2012: /132,106,000 t( = & — = F:
HK$46,293,000) and HK$45,236,000 (2012: HK$36,664,000) respectively. 123,306,000 7T ) * 48,818,000 Jt( =

T ——4F : 46,293,000/ 7T ) &45,236,000
BT (ZZF— =% :36,664,000/7T) °

(i) Depreciation of approximately HK$165,660,000 (2012: HK$134,810,000), (i) 7 49165,660,000/8 TT( —F — —4F :
HK$3,048,000 (2012: HK$1,816,000) and HK$18,324,000 (2012: 134,810,000787T) * 3,048,0008 L (=&
HK$18,461,000) have been charged in cost of sales, selling and ——% : 1,816,000 ) &% 18,324,000
distribution costs and administrative expenses respectively. T (ZZF—=%F : 18,461,000 L) % B

HERKA - $HE RBXKARITHRASZH
kR o
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(continued) (#)

17 Land use rights 17 tihfP R
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAIT
Net book value R HE
At 1 January Rn—H—H 140,093 118,860
Currency realignment B 3,388 1,949
Additions NE 51,954 23,363
Amortisation for the year TN (3,070) (4,079)
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 192,365 140,093
The Group's interests in land use rights are situated outside Hong Kong SEMAENLTHEREERMLNEEE
with medium term leases. The amounts are amortised on a straight-line Gh o FHIARHEE - ZSSEUESE
method over the respective lease periods no longer than 50 years. RTEBBS0F 2B HERANE -
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(continued) (#&)

18 Intangible assets 18 B EE
Group Company
55 NG|
Other Other
(Note) intangible intangible
Goodwill assets Total assets
(Bf3E) Hith Hity
me BILEE st BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT
As at 1 January 2012 R=Z—=-F—A—H
Cost %N 1,026,460 8,006 1,034,466 1,702
Accumulated amortisation BT - (583) (583) =
Net book value BREFE 1,026,460 7,423 1,033,883 1,702
Year ended 31 December 2012 &HBE-ZE——fF
TZA=t+—HLEE
At 1 January 2012 WN-_E——F—H—H 1,026,460 7,423 1,033,883 1,702
Currency realignment B 6,534 62 6,596 -
Additions NE - 6,513 6,513 -
Amortisation for the year FNEH - (659) (659) -
At 31 December 2012 R-T——F+-"A=+—H 1,032,994 13,339 1,046,333 1,702
As at 31 December 2012 R=TB——F+=-H=+—H
Cost PR AR 1,032,994 14,591 1,047,585 1,702
Accumulated amortisation Rt = (1,252) (1,252) =
Net book value BREFE 1,032,994 13,339 1,046,333 1,702
Year ended 31 December 2013 &BE=-T—=f
+TZA=+—HLFE
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—H—H 1,032,994 13,339 1,046,333 1,702
Currency realignment B 10,484 235 10,719 -
Additions NE - 16,573 16,573 -
Amortisation for the year N - (1,398) (1,398) =
At 31 December 2013 R-_ZE—=F+=-A=+—H 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227 1,702
As at 31 December 2013 R=-ZB—-=%+=-A=+—H
Cost BRAR 1,043,478 31,369 1,074,847 1,702
Accumulated amortisation BT - (2,620) (2,620) =
Net book value R FE 1,043,478 28,749 1,072,227 1,702
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18 Intangible assets (Continued)

Note:

Goodwill is allocated to a group of CGUs identified for sales and distribution
of natural gas and other related products business, which is also an operating
segment, representing the lowest level within the Group at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes.

The recoverable amount of the group of CGUs is determined from value in use
calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling
prices and direct costs during the year. Management estimates a discount rate of
12.6% (2012: 12.9%) using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to this group of CGUs. The
growth rate of 6.0% (2012: 6.1%) for the next five years are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

The value in use calculations is derived from cash flow projections based on the
most recent financial budgets for the next 5 years approved by management.
Cash flows beyond 5-year period have been extrapolated using growth rates of
3.0% (2012: 3.0%) per annum, which is based on industry growth forecasts. The
Board considered no impairment loss is necessary as at 31 December 2013.

In sales and distribution of natural gas and other related products business, the
recoverable amount calculated based on value in use exceeded carrying value by
HK$2,629,000,000. An increase in discount rate to 20.2% or growth rate for the
next five years become negative 6% would remove the headroom.

e M RAR M

(continued) (#)

18 BILEE (&)

GERE

B D B BRI & REBIAR AR M E tAERE
EBREANN AR EESMG (T2 —EAgE
D REEBAABEEBNMUEHEEHEE
REEX) -

BB EABN 2 AT Bl B IRBEREE
Mmet®E - FREEZBRESRFATEE
BREREEREERAZBHES - EREEF
AREEAMSTHEEEHEEEERZERSE
EEMETRABRZRAMERGINIEE126%
(ZZE—ZF :129%) c KRRAF6.0%(=F
——F 6 1%)ZEERDNERTEZERIEA -
EEREERAESH HENEMSRRES 2B
FEHIRIEE -

EAEBEEHEDREEEBAFORRAFEANRK
e FHAEMEL RS REBFRITEME
BESFNESREEAREF3.0% (ZF—=
F:3.0%) MIEREHEE - HHERTHER
BE - EERRABE_T—=F+_A=+—
B WEABENERRE

SHEE 5 85 K SR SR Tk L th HE B 2 S I B LR R
THiZE AEERLREERNE%2,629,000,000
BITEHE o TR EFHZE 20.2% kR R L F R
RERAB 6% ERESE -
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e RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

19 Interests in subsidiaries — Company 19 RHEAB#EZR — A F

2013 2012

—E-Z=F —T——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost LT - R 1 1

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE A FfS /BB 1 =) 3R IE 4,085,829 2,300,627

4,085,830 2,300,628
Except for the amounts due from certain subsidiaries to the extent of W R LCE T 88 2 ) 2 3078 203,200,000 7
HK$203,200,000 (2012: Nil), which are unsecured, interest bearing TT(ZZT——F &) RERBIIZFFX
at 7.21% per annum and are expected to be repaid more than 12 721 %t EEFEHBEREFERZBHERB
months after the respective year ends, all the remaining amounts 128 AEES - EeREWE AR FKIETE
due from subsidiaries are not expected to be settled or repayable in BT ana RARREFHER - WIER

the foreseeable future and are therefore treated as part of the equity I B A RERIEE 2 —EBDEIE o

investments in subsidiaries.
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tre SRR M

(continued) (#)

20 Interest in an associate 20 REtE N aIER
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Share of net assets: FEIEEEFE -
At 1 January R—H—H 6,843 -
Currency realignment BEAz 180 =
Acquisition (Note 35) Wb (B9#E 35) = 7,440
Share of loss of an associate EE—REE R R EE (861) (597)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 6,162 6,843
Nature of investment in an associate, which is a private limited R-ZE—=Ft+-_HA=+—BREZE A7
company, as at 31 December 2013: (FREBRAR) REMEMT
Percentage of
Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
BEREER
a8 HfER BIZER FEEK Bk
HAT A RE RELR RMB20,000,000 PRC Trading of natural gas 30%
AARBRAT AR 20,000,000 7T e AAREE
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

20 Interest in an associate (Continued)

The following amounts represent the Group’s 30% share of the assets
and liabilities, and revenue and results of the associate for the year

ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

20 W DT (

&)

NTE&EARE TS =6 _FT—=
+-A=+—BLFELEBEREEBHEAT
ZEERBE EEBERESE

2013 2012
—F-=F —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Assets: BE
— Non-current assets —IERBEE 3,892 545
— Current assets —mEVEE 4,291 6,720
8,183 7,265
Liabilities: 8E&:

— Current liabilities —nEas 2,021 422
Net assets BEFE 6,162 6,843
Revenue = 1,857 85
Expenses X (2,718) (682)
Loss before taxation BRA% A& 1R (861) (597)
Income tax FriSti - -
Loss and total comprehensive loss EEREEEERRE (861) (597)
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tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

N

21 Interest in a joint venture 21 REeEhxERER
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAIT
Share of net assets: e B EFE :
At 1 January R—HA—H 43,393 43,831
Currency realignment BHAz 1,050 718
Share of loss of a joint venture Eh—RAErXEEE (3,212) (1,156)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 41,231 43,393
Nature of investment in a joint venture, which is a private limited RZE—=FRe20%x(LEERAAF)
company, as at 31 December 2013: ZIEME -
Percentage of
Registered Country of Principal interest held
Name capital establishment activities indirectly
BESEER
g g EMARLER TEEK BHAK
1L 7 B B R RMB 100,000,000 PRC Trading of coalbed methane 35%
BRAR AR 100,000,000 7T LGl KEREE
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e MR MEE

(continued) (#&)

21 Interest in a joint venture (Continued)

The following amounts represent the Group’s 35% share of the assets
and liabilities, and revenue and results of the joint venture for the year

ended 31 December 2013 and 2012:

NEE DR

&)

UT&EARE S =—GR-_ZT——-F
T A=+ HUEFESEBEEELEE
ERBE  BEEREEZ35%

2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Assets: BE
— Non-current assets —IERBEE 108,206 97,228
— Current assets —mEVEE 19,885 27,117
128,091 124,345
Liabilities: 8E&:

— Current liabilities —nEas 86,860 80,952
Net assets BEFE 41,231 43,393
Revenue = 173,814 83,853
Expenses Fs (177,021) (85,002)
Loss before taxation BRA% A& 1R (3.207) (1,149)
Income tax HIERA (5) (7)
Loss and total comprehensive loss EEREEEERRE (3.212) (1,156)

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tre SRR M

(continued) (4&)

22 Available-for-sale financial assets 22 At EMEEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAIT
Equity securities: IRAFES
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB T 2 2
— unlisted outside Hong Kong —BABINE LT 190,000 190,000
Debt securities: BEEES -
— listed in Hong Kong —&BBLEM 314,342 126,317
— listed outside Hong Kong —HFBAIN T 330,217 206,905
— unlisted —3EET 450 450
835,011 523,674
At the date of the statement of financial position, all the listed equity RAMBMRAKXBE A LEWRA
securities and all debt securities are stated at fair values. The unlisted BHHUARAFEINE FEMRAE
equity securities to the extent of approximately HK$190,000,000 % #7190,000,00078 w( = & — — F:
(2012: HK$190,000,000) are stated at cost less impairment, if any. 190,000,000 7% 7t ) ¥ 4% Ak A 0 B R B (10
Those securities do not have quoted market price in an active market BHIER - ZERFRRIRER IS EMIS
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. HwE BEQAFETEASENE -
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e BT RS R R M
(continued) (4)

22 Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued) 22 AIRHEEMKERE (&)

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets are AL EMBEERTDENUATEEE
denominated in the following currencies:

2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Renminbi AR 233,267 231,566
Hong Kong dollar I 2 2
US dollar ETT 590,701 281,985
Other currencies Hibh gk 11,041 10,121
835,011 523,674
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial REBRAR BBz Z=EERRAD 1
position date is the carrying value of the debt securities classified as RAHNERGESF REE -
available-for-sale.
Except for the unlisted equity securities outside Hong Kong amounted Fr B ASNEY FE_ETHARASZE 25 190,000,000
to HK$190,000,000, the available-for-sale financial assets are pledged BN A EMBEETER - ER
as a security for the Group’s banking facilities (Notes 29 and 36). EERITRLE QA (FsE29 &2 36) °
None of these debt securities is either past due or impaired. ZEVIGEERSaE - TRERE -
23 Inventories 23 FE
2013 2012
—E-Z=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET
Raw materials [ 65,413 67,675
Work-in-progress EREIR 52,289 113,609
Finished goods and natural gas 2K i R RAR 68,224 43,293
185,926 224,577
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

24 Deposits, trade and other receivables 24 % - BZRHEMBEWRIE
Group Company
] A
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F —E—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHAT FTHERT FAEL
Trade receivables (Note (b)) B S FEWARR (FIEE (b)) 372,414 146,658 - -
Advance to Lessee (Note (c)) BRFAHEMAT (M) 240,948 155,508 = -
Loan to non-controlling interests (Note (d)) Bt FIEHERG RS (Ff & (d)) - 12,400 = =
Loan to a third party (Note (e)) ERT—RE=7H (K E) 25,400 24,800 = =
638,762 339,366 - -
Prepaid construction costs SER TN 234,831 171,941 = =
Prepayment for acquisition of land use rights Y& (s TR X 206,583 36,830 - =
Prepayment for acquisition of properties L ESEINEN 78,570 - - =
Prepaid natural gas costs BRRARKA 168,251 107,620 = =
Prepaid material and equipment costs FARIMEL R R A 87,111 89,002 = -
Interest receivables (Note (c)) FEUF 2. (FIFE (o) 90,833 53,950 = -
Other prepayments HAMFERR 106,050 79,282 - -
Other receivables H it IR 181,063 89,807 23,980 19,314
1,792,054 967,798 23,980 19,314
Less: Non-current portion R FEREH D (870,710) (404,754) = =
Current portion e 921,344 563,044 23,980 19,314
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

24 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of deposits, trade and other
receivables approximate their fair values as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

At each statement of financial position date, the Group’s allowance for
impairment of trade receivables will individually be determined based on
the credit history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. Consequently, specific
impairment allowance will be recognised.

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 60 to 90 days to
its trade customers and keeps monitoring its outstanding trade receivables.
Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior management of the
Group.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

24 B~ E5 REMEWIR
(&

GEE

(@) HAREFEASEN BEFERRAH
Sl é’%&ﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬂy IR FREEEE R
FERE

(b) RNEEHBRAXRAY KEBZEEE
FRERRBEEEPOEEESE (WHER
Bl R ) RRITTIS R EREE -
E it - EREBREREE -

SRR TESRFPZFEAEEHNT60H
FO0HZMH  WEATEEITE M AREEZ
EoRKER SERATERETHERM
BEARIE 2 A o

B S RMIRRZ R DT T

Group
58

2013 2012

—E-=fF —T—_4F

HK$000 HK$’000

FTHExT FHT

Neither past due nor impaired BR = oK 180 B N R (B 342,859 133,824

Past due but not impaired: BB RIRE ¢

—91 to 180 days —91£180H 18,716 6,646

— Over 180 days —8i8180H 10,839 6,188

Total a5t 372,414 146,658
As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of approximately n= =F+ZA=+—8  @HAEX

HK$29,555,000 (2012: HK$12,834,000) that were past due but not
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in their credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

24 Deposits, trade and other receivables
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(d)

(e)

®

On 23 September 2011, the Group entered into a finance arrangement
to provide various finance services to Lessee for a fee no more than 2.5%
of committed financing amount. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
advanced to Lessee amounted to approximately HK$240,948,000 (2012:
HK$155,508,000) for the construction of assets which will be under a sale
and leaseback arrangement resulting in a finance lease to Lessee upon
the completion of the assets. The amount is interest bearing at 13.0% per
annum. This transaction constituted connected transaction in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the interest income arising from
this arrangement amounting to HK$36,466,000 (2012: HK$28,456,000)
(Note 10).

Loan to non-controlling interests was interest free and repayable on
demand. In May 2013, the loan was fully repaid by the non-controlling
interests in cash.

The balance represented a loan to a third party to support the third party’s
acquisition of natural gas friendly vehicles. The loan to the third party is
unsecured, interest bearing at 4.0% per annum and repayable annually
in five equal installments by 11 August 2016. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the interest income arising from this loan to a third party
amounting to HK$1,016,000 (2012: HK$992,000) (Note 10).

The carrying amounts of the deposits, trade and other receivables are
mainly denominated in Renminbi.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

24 B B REMEBWGIR

(&

BeE « (%)

()

R-ZB——FAA-+=0 " £ETIH
B REZHEBERS FABS
BERTHBBARAMEEZ25% R_T
—=%#+-_A=+—R8  £@AAAS
23X 49240,948,0008 L( =& — —F ¢«
155,508,000 7T ) * AEEERER © Mz
LEETE —BERMARTY - BEAA
FTREERTIRELEREARE - ZHIER
FFNEN13.0% 1 E - ZFFBEBER IR
RETBEHFEMRBNB1AZETRS ©

BE—_T—=#+_A=+—HLFE"
I B 2 HE R R B U A 536,466,000 7T (=
T — 4 : 28,456,000 7T) (KizX 10) o

FERESEFREERBEREE - 1
—F-=FRA FEREZNEETA

ERBERTEZIUZEE=FEEX
ARREWR - ZBYE=FERERR -
BREFNEL4O%FTEIER=ZT—XFENA
+—HAUNEE—8 SRHEE HE
—E-=Ft+-A=+—HItFEE " F=
T EREENTFEWAAI,016,0007% T
(ZZ——% :992,0007T) (MizE10) °

e BHREMBUFIEZREENLA
R¥EHE -
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

25 Financial assets at fair value through profit or

25 BRATVELBERARCHBEE

loss E
Group Company
&8 NG
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—=F —T——F —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TR TR FET
Equity securities: MRAE S -
— listed in Hong Kong —BBLm 81,800 60,876 33,138 42,515
— listed outside Hong Kong — BB ET 4,657 13,560 - 9,013
86,457 74,436 33,138 51,528
Debt securities: RI5ES -
— listed in Hong Kong —BALm 2,156 2,266 - -
- listed outside Hong Kong — BB £ 29,732 30,567 - -
- unlisted —JELE 27,467 27,129 - -
145,812 134,398 33,138 51,528
The carrying amounts of the financial assets at fair value through profit BRATELSERARZUBEE 2 RHEHE
or loss are denominated in the following currencies: RUATSEH#EEHE -
Group Company
8 NG
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—=fF —T——F —E-=% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAT THEx TAET
Renminbi AR 6,571 6,606 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 79,887 58,817 33,138 42,515
US dollar xET 59,354 68,975 - 9,013
145,812 134,398 33,138 51,528

RPBRA K BHNEAEERRBEA
FELEBSARNEBESNREE

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the statement of financial
position date is the carrying value of debt securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

EATELCBESARNMBEETER -
EREBIRITRE MR (FI7E29 & 36) °

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are pledged as a
security for the Group's banking facilities (Notes 29 and 36).
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(continued) (#)

26 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 26 EEER  RITEREES
Group Company
%8 A
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F —E—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FTHEx FHET
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFERS 3,019,253 2,397,249 62,366 83,936
Short-term bank deposits 5 HIRI TR 1,153,725 751,424 861,044 -
4,172,978 3,148,673 923,410 83,936
Less: Time deposits with maturity A ER AR B =18 A R
over three months TE TR (795,427) (731,762) - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEEA 3,377,551 2,416,911 923,410 83,936
The interest rates for short-term bank deposits was approximately RESRITERNFERNEN T 40.04% =
0.04% to 3.05% (2012: 0.01% to 1.90%) per annum. The deposits 3.05% (ZF—=F : 0.01% £ 1.90%) °
have a maturity of ranging from 14 to 365 days. GFERENT14BE365H -
Included in bank deposits, bank balances and cash are amounts of AT WITA R KIE£472,351,723,000
approximately HK$2,351,723,000 or RMB1,851,750,000 (2012: BT AR 1,851,750,000 70 ( —B——4F
HK$2,306,479,000 or RMB1,860,064,000) denominated in Renminbi 2,306,479,0007% 7t sk A & ¥ 1,860,064,000
which are deposited with banks in Mainland China. The conversion TC) AN REEETHE - SRR B A AR
of these Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies and 17 o S ANREEHE LS KR INE RAIEH
the remittance of funds out of Mainland China is subject to the rules Bl A b B Y & 7R3 <F AR B R AR M O SNE
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC BIEHEHIE -
Government.
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e RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

26 Time deposits, bank balances and cash 26 THFER - RITEHRRE
(Continued) (#&
The carrying amounts of the time deposits, bank balances and cash are EHER  RITEREFE S ZREBENLT
denominated in the following currencies: P WA
Group Company
58 N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=fF "Z—_f —E—=F _—T-_4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT TET FHET
Renminbi AR 2,717,263 3,054,030 1,082 16,817
Hong Kong dollar BIT 80,923 74,102 51,910 67,103
US dollar e 1,373,618 9,358 870,418 16
Other currencies Hi & 1,174 11,183 - =
4,172,978 3,148,673 923,410 83,936
27 Trade and other payables 27 S R HMBENFIE
Group Company
&8 NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F —E—=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHAT FTHET FHET
Trade payables B 2 ERIRR 386,462 167,394 - =
Consideration payables FERIRE 13,678 1,240 - =
Construction cost payables eI 247,680 229,007 - =
Interest payable FERTFILR 27,669 992 - =
Dividends payable to JERTIEIERR
non-controlling interests RIS 5,246 - - -
Other payables and accruals H A eI R ERT & A 179,069 170,790 28,262 2,720

859,804 569,423 28,262 2,720
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27 Trade and other payables (Continued)

28

The Board considers that the carrying amounts of trade and other

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR M

payables approximate their fair values.

(continued) (4&)

27 BESREMBENRIR (&)

EXRAR EZRHEMENFKBAZER

BEERANFERS -

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: BIRNERZER ST :
Group
£

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHT
Current to 90 days BIHAZ 90 H 334,299 124,124
91 to 180 days 912180 H 24,012 17,538
Over 180 days B8 180 H 28,151 25,732
Total aat 386,462 167,394

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly
denominated in Renminbi.

Receipt in advance

BHRHEMENFRENRIEETENAR

WeEHE -

28 FAWFKIA

2013 2012
—E-=F —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT

Receipt in advance for sales of natural ~ SH& RN R MK E b B EEZE o 2 FEUGRIE
gas and other related products 816,937 808,434

Receipt in advance for connections MARE B R 2 TEGRIE

of gas pipelines 189,656 338,324
1,006,593 1,146,758
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e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

28 Receipt in advance (Continued) 28 FEWRIE (&)
As at 31 December 2013, included in receipt in advance for sales RZBE—=F+"_A=+—H " #HEXA
of natural gas was the amount received from customers using I/ RARNERFEASEERERICRER
C cards amounting to approximately HK$502,198,000 (2012: B FRIE %) 502,198,000 B L (=& — —F :
HK$575,698,000), in which the movements are as follows: 575,698,000 ) TEW KB 2 & &M
N

2013 2012

—E—=fF —T——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHT

At 1 January n—A—H 575,698 605,334

Currency realignment B 13,928 9,924

Payments received in advance B U FE U kI8 1,838,774 1,833,934
Redemption during the year FFEL (1,926,202) (1,873,494)

At 31 December ®n+—-—A=+—H 502,198 575,698

29 Borrowings 29 fBE
Group Company
%5 NG

2013 2012 2013 2012

—B-=fF —T——F —E—=fF —E——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAT TET FHET

Long-term R H

Other borrowings, unsecured SRITHEE - EIKH 254,000 496,000 = =

Other borrowings, secured Hifg s —HHEA 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000

954,000 1,196,000 700,000 700,000

Short-term y5h:i

Bank borrowings, unsecured SRITHEE — EIKH 215,900 486,080 = =

Bank borrowings, secured RITEE —BEA 212,150 647,045 = =

Other borrowings, unsecured Hi{gE — EiK 280,450 27,743 - =

708,500 1,160,868 - -

Total borrowings {EERE 1,662,500 2,356,868 700,000 700,000
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tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

29 Borrowings (Continued) 29 88 (&)
Other borrowings are mainly loans from fellow subsidiaries of the non- HEEFEREF AP RIEFERER 2
controlling interests of CCNG. Details of the loans are set out in Notes RIRMEBARMEE  sFBEEMIEE 38(b)(iii)
38(b)(iii) and (iv). K (iv) °
The Group's borrowings are repayable as follows: SEAERZBENT :
Bank borrowings Other borrowings
RITEE Hig &
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F —E——F —E-=fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT FTHERT FHET
Within 1 year —FR 428,050 1,133,125 280,450 27,743
Between 1 and 2 years —EZ&FR - - 254,000 248,000
Between 2 and 5 years “ERER - - 700,000 948,000
Wholly repayable within 5 years BRAFEREHER 428,050 1,133,125 1,234,450 1,223,743
The Company'’s borrowings are repayable as follows: NElZ ERERIET

Other borrowings

HApfER
2013 2012
—E—=5 —F——F
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Between 2 and 5 years 2E5F 700,000 700,000
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e BT RS R R M

(continued) (4&)

29 Borrowings (Continued) 29 B8 (&)
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BENRBEN T EBEE - WA R
following currencies and carried at the following interest rates: F =B8R :
Group Company
58 NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—=fF —E——F —E—=fF T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT TExT FAT
Renminbi AR 750,348 1,009,823 - -
Hong Kong dollar BT 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000
United States dollar EH 212,152 637,275 - -
Euro BT - 9,770 - -
1,662,500 2,356,868 700,000 700,000
At fixed rates (Bl e A 865,108 1,190,184 700,000 700,000
At floating rates b2 s 797,392 1,166,684 - =
1,662,500 2,356,868 700,000 700,000
Weighted average effective interest MEFEHERFERE
rates (per annum):
— Bank borrowings —RIIEE 3.4% 3.1% - -
— Other borrowings —HifgE 4.5% 45% 3.7% 3.7%

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate their fair
values, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The fair values of the other borrowings are based on cash flows
discounted using a rate based on the effective interest rate of 4.2%
(2012: 4.5%) per annum and are within level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

Details of the Group’s banking facilities are set out in Note 36.

As at 31 December 2013, borrowings to the extent of approximately
HK$700,000,000 (2012: HK$700,000,000) was secured by part of its
equity interests (actual capital investment at the time of drawdown) in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2013, certain facilities are secured by financial
assets through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets held
by the Group.

29 Borrowings (Continued) 29 88 (&)
The carrying amounts and fair values of non-current borrowings are as FERBEEZRABERAFENT
follows:
Group: £E
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AVE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TAET
Other borrowings HifEE 954,000 1,196,000 934,755 1,169,305
Company: YA
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AVE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F —E-=F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TAET
Other borrowings HiEE 700,000 700,000 683,549 686,002

== :ﬁ.ﬁe?’/alfij( RHEE ZRE
BEEAVEES

HMEEAFEDLDERRBERER X
42% (ZFE——F : 45%) MENR SR
EOENATEE-ER -

KEZRITREFBRANEE36 ©

RNR—E—=%#+-_HA=+—H0 =
#3700,000,00078 t( = & — = F:

700,000,000 70) TIAEEIEEZEWB A

BB B AN A 2 (7 S B E R B 1 B R AROAR
BE)EREM -
R-B-—=F+"A=+—H H5THE

BHEEFAZRBRAFERLBER ARZTH
BERAHLEVHEEFERER -
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30 Senior notes — Group and Company 30 BEEEE-&KERAQF
2013 2012
—E—=F T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T
US$ denominated senior notes LAZETTRHEZ BERE 2,672,082 -

On 25 April 2013, the Company issued senior notes, with an aggregate
nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,713,000,000)
at par value (the “Senior Notes”), which bear interest at 5.25% per
annum and the interest is payable semi-annually in arrears. The net
proceeds after deducting the direct issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$344,000,000 (equivalent to HK$2,666,000,000). The
Senior Notes will mature on 25 April 2018 and are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2013, the fair value of the Senior Notes amounted
to approximately HK$2,728,504,000. The fair value of the Senior Notes
traded in active market is based on quoted market price at the balance
sheet date. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length
basis. The Senior Notes is within level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.
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31 Deferred tax liabilities

Details of deferred tax liabilities in respect of accelerated depreciation

31

e MR MR

(continued) (#)

EEHIREE

BRMERFERBREMARNGEEE

allowances and others and amount charged to the consolidated profit AR Z B2 REHEBEFBROT ¢
and loss are as follows:
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At 1 January —H—H 20,829 14,097
Currency realignment ook 504 231
Charged to consolidated profit RERE B AR (FEE12)
and loss (Note 12) 2,627 6,501
At 31 December W+=A=+—H 23,960 20,829

Deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of approximately
HK$39,481,000 (2012: HK$42,584,000) have not been recognised
for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries because the
directors consider that the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Unremitted earnings totalled approximately HK$1,214,893,000 (2012:
HK$1,338,119,000) as at 31 December 2013.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
of approximately HK$112,339,000 (2012: HK$96,062,000) to carry
forward against future taxable income. No deferred tax assets in
respect of such losses have been recognised as at 31 December 2013
and 2012 due to the uncertainty of their future recoverability. All the
tax losses will be expired within the next 5 years.

iR FE P 15 B & & 4939,481,000/8 7T (=

— 4 : 42,584,000 7T ) I & FE R J,%TE
MR EMBIIE - b 308 AR A 5L
BRAIZAEBHRAF : RAEERARED
TN EERHEAERZEH AL ERES
BB IreEr] A ARRED - R=F
—ZF+-—A=+—H8 AEHBAEH
49 51,214,893,000/8 ;o ( =& — — F ¢

1,338,119,0007 7T ) °

RZE—=F+=-A=+—8" %lZﬂ%
HE SRR T B 18 49 112,339,000 7T (=
== g 96,062,000?&75)LAMLEESENE
BEIWALE R —=FR T —=
F+_A=+—BRZSEREEREL
MEBEE  EREAERRESAKEEFR
BABA - FTERIBEESN TEREREM
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RARIBRE REGTE
(a) Share capital (a) BR=&
Number of
shares Amount
RZEE K]
‘000 HK$'000
T FAT
Authorised: ii :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at A_TE——_F—H—H "
1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 —E——F+ZA=1+—HBK
and 31 December 2013 —E—=Ft+ZA=+—H
BIREE0.01 T2 FiBik 125,000,000 1,250,000
Issued and fully paid: EETREE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each R-ZZE——F—H—H
At 1 January 2012 ERREEO0.01 BT TiEik 4,952,116 49,521
Issue of shares upon exercise of E AR e A T {5 1 B A T AR AP
share options (Note) (BRF=E) 13,290 133
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F+-A=+—H 4,965,406 49,654
Issue of shares upon exercise of E B AR A T3 1 B A T AR A7
share options (Note) (FfE) 35,310 353
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+="H=+—8H 5,000,716 50,007
Note: B -

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company allotted and
issued 35,310,000 (2012: 13,290,000) shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at
the exercise price of HK$0.43 (2012: HK$0.43) per share as a result of the
exercise of share options.
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(continued) (#)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RAKRBRE RETHE (F)

(Continued)

(b) Share option schemes (b) HBEREESE

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed by the
shareholders on 31 January 2002.

Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme, subject to further
refreshment of the limit on the grant of options by shareholders,
is 10% of the issued shares as at 31 January 2002, being the
date of shareholders’ approval of the Old Share Option Scheme.
On 14 August 2002, 9 June 2004 and 22 September 2006, the
shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary resolution
respectively approving the refreshment of the 10% limit on the
grant of options under the Old Share Option Scheme.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 28 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

REBRRR _FT_F—-HA=1+—H
BB ORFER - RARNE R S
(TRBRERHERE]) -

RERBEBRETSE EFRATRIG
REBRETENSERZEE -4
ER2RERARLENB LR ZIE
8 TRAERSRBE (BHEARIH
HIfB R R Z T RIEATES) - U
REMBEXELR/RANENBEA
AR 2 HER - BERERLE
[ o

BIR R B ERER 8 A & 2 AR
Frg k2 RME B ER (KRR ST
BHERERSE) AR ST _F—
H=F— H(Eﬂﬂx%ﬁtlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxﬁé
AEIER) ZEBITRMHZ10% °
ARRE—_ZEET_FNA+HIA -
TTPIIEE/\H}LEI&—? ?/\fﬁjlﬂ
Tt HY BB EREE -
B HIRIR R B B AR AT &1 9% 1 B AR
2 10% fREE -

RER+ZEARE SLaEKR2
HEZREBLERISHBOBERERE
ZHEBETERNEBZ1% -

ERBREZATATRBERERS
st 28 HABM 1B T2 RE®RE
MERERT 2BRE - BREZTT
EHRMEERRE  MEEMBER
T ARMRNSEESE B ERER
BRRERERAZ AR +F -
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(continued) (4&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes

(Continued)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an
eligible participant under the Old Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The Old Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from
31 January 2002 and terminated on 23 November 20711.
Nevertheless, the share options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme prior to the termination continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old Share Option
Scheme.

In order to motivate and reward the Company'’s staff, on 30 July
2009, the Company had granted to certain eligible participants
of the Company share options to subscribe for an aggregate of
100,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in share capital
of the Company, under the Old Share Option Scheme (the 10%
general limit under the Old Share Option Scheme has been
refreshed pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 22 September 2006), subject to acceptance by the grantees.
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32 RARBRE REE (F

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) fBRRAETEI(H)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

(i) FFIRUBREZIRIRIKAES

(i) The terms and conditions of the share options granted

are as follows: wmr
Date of offer Exercise Number of Vesting Contractual life
to grant option price option condition of option
BRERLBH TEE BREHE SRR BRES QIR
‘000
T
Option granted to employees:
KT EE 2Bk
—on 30 July 2009 HK$0.43 30,000 Vested on Expire at the close of
31 July 2011 business on 30 July 2014
A=TETNF 0.43%7T RZTE——%F R-T—PF
+tA=+H +A=+—H +tRA=TH=Z%
b)) R P A5 SR B FE R
—on 30 July 2009 HK$0.43 30,000 Vesting on Expire at the close of
31 July 2012  business on 30 July 2014
—RZETNF 0.43787T RZTE——%F RZT—F
+tA=+H +HA=+—H +A=1+H%:
b)) R P 4 SR R FE R
—on 30 July 2009 HK$0.43 40,000 Vesting on Expire at the close of
31 July 2013  business on 30 July 2014
A=TTNF 0.43%7T RZTE—=%F R=Z—PF
+tHA=+H +HA=+—H +A=1+H%:
B R P 4 SR R FE R
Total share options 100,000

BRI
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

(i) The number and weighted average exercise prices of

32 RARBRE REE (F)

(b) fBARAEHEI(H)

(i) FBREEE R IEFETEEN

the share options are as follows: F e
2013 2012
—E2-=% —E—CF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price option price option
hIREF 13 MEFEH
TEE BRERAE 1B EIEHE
HK$ '000 HKS '000
BT F’ BT TR
Outstanding at 1 January K—RA—BREARITE 0.43 84,490 0.43 98,180
Forfeited B8 0.43 (320) 0.43 (400)
Exercised (Note (a)) 2170 (M3 @) 0.43 (35,310) 0.43 (13,290)
Outstanding at 31 December ~ W+ A =+—HHKIT{E 0.43 48,860 0.43 84,490
Exercisable at 31 December W+ A=+—RA7E 0.43 48,860 0.43 44,520
Notes: MesE

(@  The closing prices of the Company’s shares at the dates on
which the share options were exercised for the year ended 31
December 2013 were HK$1.50 and HK$1.13 (2012: HK$0.66
and HK$0.76).

(b) The options outstanding at 31 December 2013 had a

weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.58 years
(2012: 1.58 years).
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RARIBRE REGTE (&
(Continued)
(b) Share option schemes (Continued) (b) HERRHEESHEI(E)

(iii) The following table discloses details of the Company’s (iii) T§ﬁ§§$& ESREFE—
share options held by a director and employees for the E—ZFR-_FE——HF+=H
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012: =+—Hi ﬁftgﬁ/ﬁi” B E

ZFIE
For the year ended 31 December 2013: BE " T—=%+—-A=+—H
IEFE
Number of option (000)
BREYE (TH)
Exercise Outstanding Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
Date of price per Exercisable at 1 January during during at 31 December
grant share period 213 the year the year 2013
RZ%-ZF R-E-=F
=14 -A-A tZA=t-A
REAH T8 iiZ) HATE  ERBAE ERERM HR{TE
HKS
BT
A director of the Company 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 to 30 July 2014 - - - -
£ ZETNE ZE—EtA=1-A%
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA
30 July 2009 043 July 2012030 July 2014 450 - - 450
ZEENE -z _ﬁtﬁ T-HZ
tA=1A “Z-mEtA=TR
30July 2009 043 July 20130 30 July 2014 600 - - 600
= 3 ——ﬁtﬁ T-HZ
tA=1A ZE-MELA=1A
Sub-total It L S S 1,050
Employees 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 15330 (14,760) - 510
€8 = k3 ZZ——%tR=1-R%
tA=1A ZE-MELA=1A
30July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 29,190 (20,550) - 8,040
“ETNE 32— ’ﬁtﬂ T-HE
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TH
30July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 38920 - (320) 38,600
ZETNE ZE-ZEtA=1-AZ
tA=1A ZE-MELA=TA
St e a0 B30 o A8l
Total h) 84,490 (35310) (320 48,860
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RAKRBERE RETE (F)
(Continued)
(b) Share option schemes (Continued) (b) HEIREESTEI(EF)
(iii) The following table discloses details of the Company’s (iii) TEWEEERESREZZ
share options held by a director and employees for the E——FR-_E—_Ff_H
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012: (Continued) =t —HUEFEFLAERE

ZaE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2012: Bz Z——#+-A=+—H
IEFE

Number of option ('000)

BRERA (T1)

Exercise Qutstanding Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
Date of price per Exercisable at 1 January during during &t 31 December
grant share period 2012 the year the year 2012
RZ2-# i 2
o 58 t=A=1-8
A i e HAGR  FREMR ERERK AT
HKS
AT
Adirector of the Company 30 July 2009 043 31 July 2011 to 30 July 2014 450 (450) - -
GEES ZEINE ZE—EtA=t-BE
tA=tH “2-MELA=TH
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2012 to 30 July 2014 450 - - 450
ZEENE -z _ﬁtﬂ T-RE
tA=1H ZE-MELA=TA
30July 2009 043 31 July 2013 t0 30 July 2014 600 - - 600
ZTINE B ZELA=T-HE
tA=1H Z2-WEEA=TH
Sub-total It 1,500 (450) - 1,050
Employees 30July 2009 043 31 July 2011 t0 30 July 2014 28290 (12,840) (120) 15,330
[E8 “TTNE “B—EtA=t-HE
tA=1H Z2-WEEA=TH
30 July 2009 043 31 July 20121030 July 2014 29310 - (120) 29,190
ZETNE it _itﬂ t-RZ
tA=1H ZE-MELA=TA
30 July 2009 043 31 July 2013 to 30 July 2014 39,080 - (160) 38,920
ZEINE ZE-ZEtA=T-HE
+tA=tH “Z-MELA=TH
Sub-total et 96,680 (12,840) (400) 83,440
Total @t 98,180 (13,290) (400) 84,490
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RAKRBRE RETHE (F)

(Continued)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

(b) fBRRAETEI(H)

The Company adopted another share option scheme (the
“Existing Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution passed
by the shareholders on 23 November 2011.

Under the Existing Share Option Scheme, the Board may at its
discretion offer options to any eligible participant who is an
employee, executive or officer of the Company or its subsidiaries
(including executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries) and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who
will provide or have provided services to the Company or its
subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Existing Share Option Scheme and
the Old Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued shares of the
Company from time to time.

The maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in any 12
month-period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in
issue on the date of offer of an option.

The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within 21 days
after the date of the offer, with a consideration of HK$1 for the
grant thereof. Exercise period in respect of the options granted
shall be determined by the Board and in any event such period
of time shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date upon which such option is deemed to be granted and
accepted.

The exercise price in relation to each option offered to an eligible
participant under the Existing Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion but in any
event shall not be less than the highest of: (a) the official closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Stock Exchange on the date of offer of an option; (b) the average
of the official closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of an option; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.
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(continued) (4&)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(b) Share option schemes (Continued)

The Existing Share Option Scheme was valid for 10 years from 23
November 2011.

No share options has been granted under the Existing Share
Option Scheme up to 31 December 2013.

Share award scheme

On 4 November 2011, the Board approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Restricted Share Award Scheme”) with
the objective to recognise the contributions by eligible employees
within the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them
for their continuing operation and development and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Pursuant to the rules relating to the Restricted Share Award
Scheme (“Scheme Rules”), shares are comprised of (i) shares
subscribed for or purchased by the Company and delivered to the
Trustee appointed by the Company (Note 39(b)) subsequently; or
(i) the Trustee out of cash arranged to be paid by the Company
out of the Company’s funds to the Trustee and be held on trust
for the relevant eligible grantees until such shares are vested with
the relevant eligible grantees in accordance with the Scheme
Rules (“Restricted Shares”). The Board of Directors implements
the Restricted Share Award Scheme in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme Rules including providing necessary funds to the
Trustee to purchase or subscribe for shares up to 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Under the Restricted Share Award Scheme, the Restricted Shares
are granted to eligible employees of the Company or any one
of its subsidiaries for no consideration but subject to certain
conditions (including but not limited to, lock-up period) to be
decided by the Board at the time of grant of the Restricted Shares
under the Restricted Share Award Scheme. The Restricted Share
Award Scheme will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption.
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes
(Continued)

(c)

Share award scheme (Continued)

The Restricted Share Award Scheme operates in parallel with the
Old Share Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option Scheme.
All options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme and the
Existing Share Option Scheme continue to be valid and exercisable
subject to and in accordance with the terms of the Old Share
Option Scheme and the Existing Share Option Scheme, respectively.

Pursuant to the Scheme Rules, the Board may, from time to
time, at their absolute discretion select the eligible grantees after
taking into account various factors as they deem appropriate for
participation in the Restricted Share Award Scheme as a grantee
and determines the number of Restricted Shares to be awarded.
The Board shall cause to pay the Trustee the purchase price and
the related expenses from the Company’s resources for the shares
to be purchased by the Trustee.

The Trustee shall hold such Restricted Shares on trust for the
eligible grantees until they are vested. When the relevant eligible
grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board
at the time of making the award and become entitled to the
Restricted Shares, the Trustee shall transfer the relevant Restricted
Shares to that grantee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited. The forfeited shares are
held by the Trustee of the Restricted Share Award Scheme who
may award such shares to the awardees taking into consideration
recommendations of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, 2,700,000 restricted
shares had been awarded to the director and employees for their
services rendered to the Group, and of which 200,000 restricted
shares granted to certain employees and immediately vested.
There was no share awarded and 750,000 restricted shares
granted to the director and employees were vested during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company granted
an aggregate of 250,000,000 units of unlisted warrants under
the Restricted Share Award Scheme which are exercisable into
shares of the Company at a subscription price of HK$1.00 per
share. The fair value of warrants at the date of issue amounted
to HK$112,500,000. As at 31 December 2013, no warrants have
been exercised.

e MR MR
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32 RARBRE REEE (E)

(c)
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32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RARBRE REGTE (&)
(Continued)
(c) Share award scheme (Continued) (c) RpEEEEE(F)
Movement in the number of shares awarded for the years ended e ZT—=Fr-_ZT——F+—8
31 December 2013 and 2012 was as follows: =+T—HIEFE  REBRHHBEEZH
M -
For the year ended 31 December 2013: BE _T—=%+-_A=+—HI®F
=38
Number of shares ('000)
RA#A (TR)
Fair value Outstanding Awarded Vested  Outstanding
Dateof  pershare as at at 1 January during during at 31 December
grant  date of award Vesting date 2013 the year the year 2013
RERRH K-%-=f R=%-zZF
SHREHH -A-H tZR=1-A
RitiAH AYE ERAH HRGE ERgm ERGE HATR
HKS
iy
A director of the Company 17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2013 300 - (300) -
AH—%E% “2CEN\ATLR Z2-=EPA-A
17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2014 300 - - 300
ZE-CENATLR ZE-MEmA-A
17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2015 400 - - 400
ZE-ZENATLR ZZ-h%MA-A
Sub-tota et 1,000 - (300) 700
Employees 17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2013 450 - (450) -
[£8 “Z-Z§/\AttA “Z--5mA-A
17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2014 450 - - 450
ZE-ZENATLA “E-MEMA-A
17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2015 600 - - 600
“2CENATHR “2-14mA-A
Sub-total Nt 1,500 - (450) 1,050

Total E) 2,500 - (750) 1,750
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(continued) (#)

32 Share capital and share option/award schemes 32 RARIBRE REGTE (&
(Continued)
(c) Share award scheme (Continued) (c) REIREEI (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2012: HE—_Z——F+_-_A=+—HItF
=
Number of shares (‘000)
RA%E (TR)
Fair value Qutstanding Awarded Vested  Outstanding
Date of per share as at at 1 January during during ~ at 31 December
grant date of award Vesting date 2012 the year the year 212
HEBES RE-—f S S
SRR -A-A +ZA=1-A
RiiA% AT R4 RATTE EREE ERGE RATR
HKS
BT
Adirector of the Company 17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2013 - 300 - 300
Aa-%ES “Z-ZEN\ATHE Z3-=§mA-A
17 August 2012 076 1 April 2014 = 300 - 300
ZZ-ZEN\ATtR “Z-MEMA-A
17 August 2012 076 1 April 2015 - 400 - 400
ZE-ZE\ATtA “E-n§mA-A
Subtotal 15t - 1,000 - 1,000
Employees 17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2013 - 450 - 450
&5 ZZ-Z£/\ATtA “E-ZfMmA-A
17 August 2012 076 1 April 2014 - 450 - 450
Z2-—EN\ATtA “2-MEMA-A
17 August 2012 0.76 1 April 2015 - 600 - 600
ZZ-ZENRTtR “Z-1¥MA-A
27 December 2013 1.22 Immediate - 200 (200) -
ZE-=ETZAZTHR i
Sub-total 15t - 1,700 (200) 1,500
Total 5t - 2,700 (200 2500
During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company @E:E — =%+ A=+—HL
purchased 48,920,000 shares (2012: 200,000 shares) under the FE - RARBERGOEEGEES
share award scheme. 48,920,000 f% (—ZZ——4 : 200,000
i) Bt
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33 Reserves 33 #B&
Company AFE]
Shares and
warrants Share- (Accumulated
Capital held for based (Note (a)) losses)/
Share  redemption  shareaward compensation  Contributed Retained
premium reserve scheme reserve surplus profit Total
Bl

EL R | WERHA
X FERER B (M@ (RHER)/
kieER  HERE  RRER Heffe  SABE  REEA ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T THEL THL THL TAL THL

At 1 January 2012 RZE-—E-f-H 1,964,143 93 (10976) 13,022 49,753 (331,289) 1,685,616
Issue of shares upon exercise REREETRMETRA

of share options 7938 - - (2,356) - - 5,582
Purchase of own shares for RO R BRI AT RA

share award scheme - - (135) - - - (139)
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREENRA BRI AR - - 118 4,79 - - 4913
Set-off against accumulated loss BRZHER (W b))

(Note (b)) (400,000) - - - 68711 331,289 -
Profitfor the year ERE - - - - - 8758 8758
At 31 December 2012 RZF-—F+-f=1-A 1,572,081 963 (10,993) 15,461 118,464 8,758 1,704,734
Issue of shares upon exercise REREEEMETRR

of share options 22,199 - - (7,368) - - 14,831
Final dividend for the year HE-5=F1-f=1-H

ended 31 December 2013 EERZRBRE = - = = (32279 - (32275)
Purchase of own shares for RO R HBEATRA

share award scheme - - (54,810) - - - (54,810)
Issue of warrants under share award scheme RERARE R TR EE - - 112,500 - - - 112,500
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREENRAAER AR - - 543 3070 - - 3613
Profitfor the year ERnEH = = = = = (130,884) (130,884)
At 31 December 2013 RZT-=F+Zf=1-A 1,594,280 963 47,240 11,163 86,189 (122,126) 1,617,709
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33 Reserves (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
net assets value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation in 1993 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act of Bermuda 1981
(as amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to
the shareholders in certain circumstances which the Company is able to
satisfy.

The share premium account of the Company is distributable in the form
of fully paid bonus shares. During the year ended 31 December 2012, a
special resolution was passed on the special general meeting to approve
the cancellation of the amount of approximately HK$400,000,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the Company
towards offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company. The reduction
of share premium complied with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

34 Transactions with non-controlling interests

(@) Acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiaries

In December 2013, CCNG acquired an additional 25.0% equity
interest (of which 12.8% attributable to the Company) in BN
AR ZREE AR AR for a cash consideration of approximately
RMB2,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,556,000),
resulting in an increase in the CCNG's interests in JEM FRjhAR ZE
BEAR AT to 100.0% (of which 51.0% attributable to the
Company). The aggregate carrying amount of the non-controlling
interests in the subsidiary on the date of acquisition was
approximately HK$2,635,000. The Group recognised a decrease
in non-controlling interests of approximately HK$2,635,000 and
a decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$921,000.

In May 2012, the Group made a capital injection of
RMB31,710,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,320,000)
in its subsidiary, ZMPHEBRARERAGT. As the other
shareholder of FMAMEBHAARER AR did not make a
proportionate capital injection, the Group's interests in Z=/M
HEBKRARERRAR increased from 413% to 45.5%. The
aggregate carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
the subsidiary on the date of acquisition was approximately
HK$4,309,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-
controlling interests of approximately HK$4,309,000 and an
increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$4,309,000.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

33 f#th (&)

GERE

(a)

REAZHABBEEER - NAN=FRE
AmMEEMBRAR 2 EEFEBL QA
REEMETROZEABEZS®E - RIB
—AN-—FEREQRRE(BILR) A
AlZBARBESTHERTAHD IR TR
R MEBRIARREFSULEBR -

ANEZ BB BRI AB AR A RED
KeRNBE-_ZT——F+=-_A=+—H1IE
FE - RBREFRIAE BB —EERR
HR LS DRI MD R E IR 2 2050 # R
E4#7400,000,00078 7 AR KEH A A) 2 Rat
EiE - BIRBRDEERFE —AN—"FaH
/NG b7

34 EFERERNRS

(a)

WOE T~ R FRSME RS

RZFE—=F+=-F fudxRlk
BEMNPBEFREEXHRAAEIN
25.0% B (R Al EIEEF 12.8%) ¢
BeREHNABARK2800,000T
(4% 13,556,000 7T ) » £ HmA
ZHHEEAEMNTRRREEERA
RIREZS I = 100.0% (A A B
51.0%) ° KB A R BT#E B /Y 3£
BEZARKEBHNEELELNA
2,635,000/ 7T S ERERIEEIRIER
A #92,635,00078 7T R AR HEHR AR
EREZERM A #9921,0008 7T »

R-ZE——FHA SEREKH
RAIFEMNFRHERRARBRA
E B AR #31,710,000 7T ( 4 &
39,320,000 7T ) ° B TN A
BAARRERABNSE —BREREZ
RELAEE  SERFMNPHER
AARBRAREEMNEZAL41.3%
WEA455% - RZMBARIFTEAR
IR A UR S B AR BR AR (B 4
744,309,000/ 7T » B HERIEERHE
R #94,309,0008 7T A RIHEA A
FE(RREZRIE NI 4,309,000 7T °

I 5

T

my 5%
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34 Transactions with non-controlling interests 34 BAFIZERERNRS ()
(Continued)
(@) Acquisitions of additional interests in subsidiaries (a) WEBHKIE A mEEIMER (&)
(Continued)
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of the above FRLEANB AR A RERZEY
subsidiaries on the equity attributable to owners of the Company NAEBEANEEERNZEH MM
during the year is summarised as follows: T
2013 2012
—EB-=fF —E——4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Carrying amount of non- P B FE 1 AR i 2 AR I (E
controlling interests acquired 2,635 4,309
Consideration paid to non- B RE R E
controlling interests (3,556) -
Excess of consideration paid P AR E BB
recognised within equity (921) 4,309
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34 Transactions with non-controlling interests 34 BFIERERNRS ()

(Continued)

(b) Effects of transactions with non-controlling interests on the (b) BE=BE—=FER=-ZT—-F+=8
equity attributable to owners of the Company for the year St HLEFEHEIEREZNRS
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 HATREEABLERSNZE

2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT T

Total comprehensive income for R EIHEA AELFREE KB
the year attributable to owners
of the Company 451,663 412,241

Changes in equity attributable IVRINE=SEECENGNCIE ZS PN

to owners of the Company FE(h i
arising from:
— Acquisitions of additional — U RE R A A RE ME S
interests in subsidiaries (921) 4,309

Net effect for transactions with EFEIE IR R MR 5 ¥ A R

non-controlling interests on A AR EFE

equity attributable to owners

of the Company (921) 4,309

450,742 416,550

Consideration paid to non- B IEERERNE

controlling interests (3,556) -
Net cash paid arising from M B AR T A R

changes in ownership MELEMENB S F5E

interests in subsidiaries (3,556) -
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35

36

Acquisition of an associate
There was no acquisition of associate in 2013.

In July 2012, the Group acquired 30.0% equity interests in E33@H A
HMEREREKXARERAF from a third party for a cash consideration
of approximately RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,440,000). FEBFPABAERBERAARER AT is principally
engaging in the trading of natural gas in the PRC.

The share of assets and liabilities on the date of acquisition arising from
the acquisition are as follows:

35

U B8 — BB N )
RoIE—=FWBRBHL DT -

RZE——FtA SER—KZFE=H
KEmBTABEREBEGERARERA
Al30.0% K #E ReREBEHNARARE
6,000,000 T (#1% 74 7,440,000 78 7T ) °
B AOHERBHEAARZERAREERE
FREMERARES -

R EmELENIREB R EBEEE
REEWT

HK$'000

FAxT

Cash consideration payables ERReNE 7,440
Less: 30% share of identifiable assets & : 30% fE(H B URFE AT 34 B & &

acquired and liabilities acquired REWBEEE (7,440)

Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had aggregate banking facilities
of approximately HK$2,906,000,000 (2012: HK$2,918,700,000) for
bank borrowings, of which approximately HK$2,490,652,000 (2012:
HK$414,705,000) was unutilised.
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(continued) (#)

37 Commitments 37 A
(a) Operating leases (a) REHE
The Group leases certain of its office properties under operating SERBLEHETHHAER IS M
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for terms N - HEWFEMMEBRLER T T1
ranging from 1 year to 20 years. FR20FZETE -
At 31 December 2013, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZEBE—=%F+-A=+—H &1
payments under non-cancelable operating leases falling due as RIE A B S & B BB /R
follows: REEHEENHLTBAT -
Group
58
2013 2012
—E—=F —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAIT
Land and buildings expiring: TR FI) HABR B B A 4ty R AR =
Within one year —FR 8,003 6,976
After one year but
within five years —FRERFEA 7,966 12,436
After five years HF% 19,812 36,187
35,781 55,599
Included in the operating leases commitment above, there is lease e EARERIERN —REES L
commitment to a related party amounted to HK$28,067,000 K FE & ¥ 28,067,000 B T (=T ——4F :
(2012: HK$47,120,000) (Note 38(a)ii). 47,120,000 % 7T ) (B 7E 38(a)(ii) °
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e SRR MR
(continued) (4)
37 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Capital commitments

The Group had the following capital commitments outstanding

37 #&iE (&)
(b) EAEE

SEREEMRRK B REATRER

not provided for at the statement of financial position date: IR BITE AN RIE -
Group
£E8
2013 2012
—B—=£ —E——4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Contracted but not provided for: 25T 4B AR B

Acquisition of a subsidiary W R BT S A ) - 141,236
Property, plant and equipment YIZ - R KRR 233,680 10,557
233,680 151,793

38 Related party transactions

As at 31 December 2013, the Company was indirectly owned by Sino
Best International Group Limited (“Sino Best”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) which in turn was wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. Xu Tie-liang, the Chairman and executive
director of the Company, as to approximately 22.8%. The remaining
77.2% of the Company's shares were widely held. All directors of the
Company are considered to be related as they are members of the key
management personnel of the Company.

(@) Transactions with key management personnel

The directors of the Company are considered as key management
personnel of the Group. The remuneration of the key
management personnel is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and
market trends. Details of the remuneration paid to them are set
out in Note 11.

Related parties also include holding company and the fellow

subsidiaries of the non-controlling interests of CCNG (together, the
“CCNG NCI Group”).
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38 Related party transactions (Continued)

In addition to the related party information shown elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the following is a summary of
significant related party transactions entered into in the ordinary course
of business between the Group and its related parties during the years
and balances arising from related party transactions at the end of the
years indicated below:

(b) Transactions with the CCNG NCI Group

(i) The Group has entered into various natural gas supply
contracts with CCNG NCI Group pursuant to which natural
gas was supplied to various subsidiaries of the Group by
the CCNG NCI Group. The Group purchased natural gas
from various branch companies of the CCNG NCI Group
amounted to approximately RMB2,665,582,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,385,290,000) (2012: RMB2,326,804,000
(equivalent to HK$2,885,237,000)) for the year ended 31
December 2013.

(i) On 1 June 2010, the Group entered into a tenancy
agreement with the CCNG NCI Group pursuant to which,
the Group leases a parcel of land from the CCNG NCI Group
for the construction of gas supply of certain gas stations.
The rental is payable upon commencement of the operation
of the gas stations. Up to the consolidated statement
of financial position date, rental payment amounted to
HK$825,000 (2012: HK$806,000).

(i) On 5 January 2011, the Company entered into a loan
agreement with the CCNG NCI Group, pursuant to which
the CCNG NCI Group granted the Company a secured loan
amounting to approximately HK$700,000,000 for 5 years at
a fixed interest rate of 3.7% per annum.

e M RAR MR

(continued) (#)

38 BEALRG (&)

Bira MR N E MY AREEAL
ZEMH TXHAMEEAEBEALR
FAEHEEBRBREPIILZEIE@EA
IR5 RRFREBEALRZELED
RERRIFFIIRANT

(b) BHEAHPRIZEREDZEENRS

() SEEEHEFHPRIEERERSE
BV ZBRAARAEEEN &
bt R RIS R E A
SEZHENBARHRERASR
HE=—_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—H
WEFE  SEMAPEFRIEER
EREESD RAIHBERAR
= AR 2,665,582,000 7T (4
£743,385,290,00087T) (- &
——%F: AR#2,326,804,000
TT (1554 2,885,237,000/8 7T ) °

(i) M-ZZT—FTFA—H0 £EE
PR R R R S E R A
St HRLL  EEEFHT R
EEREREERE B A
RETFmMRENERER - s
ERERUEFREER I - B
EREMBARRKRBEE  BHE
K5 825,0008B L (= ——4F :
806,000 7T) ©

(iy A=ZZ=——F—HFFHA  AnH
MR RIS BT E
Rk Bt ZBR AR RIFE
EREREEATARSEOE
700,000,000 7% T &) . 4 HA K 1
B BEEFMEIT%ES o

FHRREBERART 2013FF5R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B RS AR MR

(continued) (#&)

38 Related party transactions (Continued) 38 BEALRF ()
(b) Transactions with the CCNG NCI Group (Continued) (b) P MPRIEREZEBMNARS
(#)

(iv)  On 8 June 2011 and 27 December 2012, a subsidiary of the (ivy RZE——FXANBEZ=-Z
Company entered into loan agreements with the CCNG NCI ——%+-_A=-++tH" A7
Group, pursuant to which the CCNG NCI Group granted the B — [ B /8 & J) B2 AR AR R 9

Company loans amounting to RMB200,000,000 (equivalent EREEBETLER G -
to HK$254,000,000) for 3 years at a fixed interest rate Bt Ao RIEERE R

of 5.8% per annum and RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to SELRGETRAAISEANRA
HK$254,000,000) for 3 years at a fixed interest rate of 5.5% R #200,000,0007t( 8 & ®
per annum, respectively. 254,000,000/ 7T ) W = FH &

o REEEFES.8% B RE
A4 A AR 200,000,000 7T (48
7 254,000,000 7 7T ) B = £ HA
B REEFAES5%ETE ©

The above transactions constituted connected transactions in ERSIRIER R FTES TR RIS
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing 14AEBKEAER S °

of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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39 FEMHMAAREEHEHKE
MR 2 1

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities

(a) EEMBEARAFBWE :

(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
2817
Eaitio AR Ly RAEE, NEFEMG
=% FEERER EfEA BRERDL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
HE B
Profaith Group Limited BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
enterprise
REERRES 17T REZER
S EBEERE
All Praise Investment BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Limited enterprise
REERRES 17T REZR
IEEE(RE
China Oil And Gas BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1 100.0% - Investment holding
Group Limited enterprise
REERRES 17T AR
S EBEERE
China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Management Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
BB IEEERE 18T REZR
Alta Financial Holdings BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$1,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Limited enterprise
EREREEERAF HBEERRES 1,000%7T REER
S EBERE
Zhongda Industrial BVI, Wholly foreign-owned US$10,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group Inc enterprise
RATEEEERAR REERARES 10,0003 7T REZR
HEBERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(a)

CHINA OIL AND GAS GROUP LIMITED  Annual Report 2013

39 FEMBLARIRZEHISHKE

MER 215 (&)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) EEHBLARFEWT : (#)
(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
B#1T
Ao Ave: L RAEE DREM
=1 FRERER & RERDL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
B L
China Oil And Gas Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
Group (Asia) Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
Fod R R E (M) BE  IEEERE 17T REERR
BRAT]
Hong Kong China Qil Hong Kong, Wholly HK$1 - 100.0%  Investment holding
And Gas Group Limited foreign-owned
enterprise
BRI REE BE  IEBERE 17T REERK
BIRAE
CCNG PRC, Wholly foreign-owned RMB700,00,000 - 51.0% Investment holding
enterprise and trading of
natural gas
HUl R HE - SNEEE R AR #700,000,0007C REBREAAREER
mERHRRER PRC, Limited liability RMB65,874,000 - 40.8%"  Trading of natural
BEEAT company gas, gas pipeline
construction and
operation of natural
gas stations
hE - BREERT AR 65,874,000 7 AAREE - RARE
BRERRARIL
i
SRR EERE PRC, Limited liability RMB15,000,000 = 40.8%"  Gas pipeline
THEEREMERA company construction
hE - BREELQT AR 15,000,000 7 RAREBRIE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

39 FEMB LRI R ZIZEHE®RE
NERE 215 (&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWT : (&)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
[BX:<h)
EaitioAvE: Ly AEE, NEFEMG
=% FEERER AfEA BRERDL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
HiE B
HETREERAR PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 40.8%"  Trading of natural gas
HERRAT company
HE - BREERF AR 20,000,0007T ARREE
BERHEEERARF PRC, Limited liability RMB900,000 - 40.8%"  Trading of natural gas-
company related equipment
hE - BREERH AR #900,0007T AAREBREER
R RRRER PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 = 30.6%"  Trading of natural gas
{R/NG company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - FREERA AR % 30,000,0007T AAREER
ARREBREE
BRI R AR PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 = 40.8%"  Trading of natural gas
—{a/NC company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - ERAEEAH AR #20,000,0007T AAREER
RAAREBRE
BERPHEMRRER PRC, Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 50.5%  Trading of natural gas
ECR/NC] company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - FREERA AR 10,000,000 7T AAREER
AAREBREE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

39 TEMBARAIRZES4EKE
B 215 (&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(a) EEZMBEARFHFWOT : (&)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
B#T
FEa o Ave: L RAEE, NEEM
=% FRERER &R RERDL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
Hi 5
SRR R R AR PRC, Limited liability RMB27,000,000 - 30.6%"  Natural gas transmission
‘AR company through pipeline
hE - BREELRA AR 27,000,000 7T EERAREE
BB R AR PRC, Limited liability RMB12,000,000 - 51.0%  Production and trading of
REARAR company liquefied natural gas
hE BREMLNF AR 12,000,0007T BIERAREEREE
MNP RRE AR PRC, Limited liability RMB25,000,000 = 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
QRN company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - BREERA AR 25,000,000 7T AAREER
AAREBRE
RN RARA A PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERF A # 30,000,000 AAREER
ARREBRE
HRHERRRAR AT PRC, Limited liability RMB 12,000,000 - 40.8%"  Trading of natural gas
company
FE - BREERT AR #12,000,0007T AAREE
FRPRRYIR (R8) PRC, Limited liability RMB30,000,000 - 51.0%  Transportation services
BRAR company
hE - BREELRA AR #30,000,0007T e alilos
SERBEERR PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 51.0%  Natural gas transmission
BIRAA company through pipeline
hE - BREELRR AR 20,000,0007T EERARES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M RAR MR

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and

controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued) (#)

39 FEMB LRI R ZIZEHE®RE
NERE 215 (&)

(a) EEMBEARAFIBWT : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
[EX:¢h)
EaitioAve: Ly RAEE DREM
£ FEERER & RERDL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
=K L
RN HERAAR PRC, Limited liability US$10,000,000 - 45.5%"  Gas pipeline design and
BRAR company construction, natural
gas transmission
through pipeline
HE - BREERAA 10,000,00037T ARREBRT REE
EERARIMIE
R BB R PRC, Limited liability RMB 12,000,000 - 30.6%%  Trading of natural gas
BREMERAA company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - BREERRT  AK%12,000,0007T AAREER
ARREBRE
B MRRER PRC, Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 41.8%"  Trading of natural gas
EfERA company and gas pipeline
construction
hE - BREERF AR # 20,000,000 ARREER
AAREBRE
RimA 2R ORI PRC, Limited liability RMB71,000,000 - 51.0% Investment holding
HeERABR AR company
FE - BREERE  ARK71,000,0007T REER
ik RA T AR PRC, Limited liability RMB15,000,000 - 35.7%%  Trading of natural gas
EfERA company and gas pipeline

hE - BREEQF

AR# 15,000,000 7T

construction
RAREEEE
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e MR MR

(continued) (4&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

39 FEMBLARIRZEHISHKE
MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBERARAFBWE : (#&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
B#T
FEaiioAve: L0 RAEE NEEM
&% FRERER &R RERDL TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
HiE )
kTR R AR PRC, Limited liability RMB2,000,000 - 35.7%%  Trading of natural gas
BIRAA company
hE - BREERA AR 2,000,000 70 AAREE
RERATAAR PRC, Limited liability RMB75,000,000 - 35.7%"  Trading of natural gas
BEREFERAR company and gas pipeline
construction
HE - EREEAR AR #75,000,0007T AAREER
ARREBREE
AEFHPREENRR PRC, Limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 40.8%"  Gas pipeline design and
BRAR company construction
FE BREERE  ARK50,000,0007T RAREBRAT REE
ARRERRARAA PRC, Wholly foreign- HK$187,500,000 - 100.0%  Investment holding,
owned enterprise construction of natural
gas stations and trading
of natural gas
HE - AMNEEE R 187,500,000 77T RERR  AARBEER
ARREBRE
R BARABR AT PRC, Sino-foreign RMB18,000,000 - 80.4%  Trading of natural gas
equity joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
FE - MR ERE  AK$18,000,0007T AAREER
% ARREBRE
RIS (R ) 1 E PRC, Wholly foreign- USD12,000,000 = 100.0%  Investment holding
BRAE owned enterprise

CERIIN S

12,000,000 FEJT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and

controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(@) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

e M HRAR MR

(continued) (#&)

39 TEMBARRZEHEKRE
MERE 215 (&)

(a) EEMBEARAFBWE : (&)

(Continued)
Place of Nominal value of  Percentage of equity
incorporation and issued share capital/ attributable to the
Name kind of legal entity registered capital Company Principal activities
B#1T
Eaitio AR Ly RAEE DR
=% FEERER & RERDL TEEK
Directly  Indirectly
B L
EREGRELE PRC, Limited liability UsD1,800,000 - 100.0%  Provision for finance
BRAR] company
HE - BREERR 1,800,000 %71 RERE
BN HRRAR PRC, Sino-foreign RMB40,000,000 - 38.8%"  Trading of natural gas
‘AT equity joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
hE PSS EARE  AK¥40,000,0007T ARREER
o AAREBREE
HEPRTITIERR PRC, Limited Liability RMB26,000,000 - 60.4%  Trading of natural gas
MRBRATR company and gas pipeline
construction
FE - BREERE  AR%26,000,0007T ARREER
AAREBREE
AT HRRAR PRC, Sino-foreign RMB15,000,000 - 75.0%  Trading of natural gas
ECE/NE] equity joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
hE - PN ERE  ARK15,000,0007T AAREER
o AAREBREE
SERTRRAR AR PRC, Sino-foreign RMB 100,000,000 = 51.0%  Trading of natural gas
equity joint venture and gas pipeline
construction
HE - FMEESE  ARK100,000,0007T ARREER
% ARREBRE

FHRREBEERART 2013FF5R
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e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

(a)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Continued)

Notes:

(iii)

The Group holds controlling interests in these subsidiaries through a
51.0% owned subsidiary, CCNG. Therefore the Group has control
over these entities and they are considered as subsidiaries of the
Company.

The Group holds controlling interests in this subsidiary through
CCNG and a wholly owned subsidiary, HKCOGG. Therefore the
Group has control over this entity and it is considered as subsidiary
of the Company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Set out below are the summarised consolidated financial

information of CCNG and

its subsidiaries that have non-

controlling interests that are material to the Group. The
information below is the amount before inter-company
eliminations.
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39 FEMBLARIRZEHISHKE

MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBERARFBWT : (H&)

GEE

(@)

(i)

(iii)

EEEBEES1 % EENHERRP
SRR RFEZ SN B A R R -
At - EEEAZSE BTG
MizxSBEHEAEARNMBEAR -

KEERTHPREREZEMNBARE
78 R KR SRS A R P B A R A
o At SEEEAZE RIS
Mm% ERFRSABNMEAF -

E=RA - ERAIARMBARE
BYEBAFAXEREEEEEFE
BERED - BEZRE - RHEMKE
RAIZFHEEEBRBEILE °

TREFIFHHRERANB AR (EELHE
EfSBEA 2 RS AU ER
BE - TRARAATH IS -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
tra SRR M

(continued) (#)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and 39 FEMBARAIRZESISHKE
controlled special purpose entities (Continued) WERZF1E (&)
(a) Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: (a) ETEMELARFBTWT : (#F)
(Continued)
CCNG
R R 2R
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Total assets BEE 8,660,826 5,396,847
Total liabilities FE=E (5.750,091) (2,739,644)
Net assets BEFE 2,910,735 2,657,203
Revenue e 5,339,680 4,268,619
Profit for the year F R 711,484 568,746
Other comprehensive income Hip 2 mEkas 50,940 30,970
Total comprehensive income ZE BT 762,424 599,716

Dividend paid to non-controlling {3 i% & F I feiEzs
interests 176,695 190,390

FOHRREEERATE  2013FF3R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e BT RS R R M

(continued) (#&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

Details of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Continued)

39 TEMBARIKRZESEHKE
MER 215 (&)

(a) EEMBARFEMOT : (&)

CCNG
GPTIIE
2013

—g-=%

HK$°000
TR

Net cash generated from operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

RERBEEZ R FH
KREEBAZA S FHE
BERBAAZIREHER

Re kR eEFERBARFR
R—A—BZRERREFEEREB

EFEBLE

RT-A=t—HAZzRERREEFEER
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1,079,696
(991,678)
(564,205)
(476,187)

1,621,044

22,920

1,167,777
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39 FEMB LRI R ZIZEHE®RE
NERE 215 (&)

39 Particulars of the principal subsidiaries and
controlled special purpose entities (Continued)

ZEARKRENERFFOT

(b) Details of the controlled special purpose entity are as (b)
follows:

N

ARES —HEREELHNEKRE D

The Company controls a special purpose entity which operates in
BE - HFBOT

Hong Kong, particulars of which are as follows: g

i

Principal activities

EREK

Special purpose entity

B NER

Best Thinker Limited (“Trustee”) Purchases, administers and holds the Company’s shares for the Restricted Share
Award Scheme for the benefit of eligible the Group’s employees

Best Thinker Limited ( [XFEAL ) REBESEREENEMRSIMER M EZEEEA - BEEEFE AR KD

As the Trustee is set up solely for the purpose of purchasing,
administrating and holding the Company’s shares for the
Restricted Share Award Scheme (Note 32(c)), the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
the Trustee and it can derive benefits from the services of the
employees who have been awarded the Restricted Shares through
their continued employment with the Group. The assets and
liabilities of the Trustee are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position from its adoption and the Company’s shares
held by the Trustee are presented as a deduction in equity as
“shares held for share award scheme”.

40 Approval of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2014.

BN EEATIE R R B () 228
AHEI(ME32) BEA - EERFAR
AR MRE - AR BEEFZTEA
BB I R B IR AT AL AR PR
HEERNHEE THEXBEREERFT
RHUNBRBEESHE -  XEANEE
rBEBRERERMAKESBREER
R BARREKT  UBREATEH
RERMER—ENREE EEET
2% JETRERDEREFAR

3]

40 #EFEMIEERRK

EZRRN-_ZE-NF=A_+tHB#HAER
RIETRREMHRE
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFMBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for UTEERBEAEVBFEFEZXEREERS
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial & RS EE T KRB BRERIL TIAE
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. ¥iEE oM -

For the year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=t—-HLEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—2-=F T —T——F C"T-TF _"TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T TAT TAT T

Results %45

Revenue ] 6,439,825 4,889,428 4,390,955 2,626,007 1,721,138
Profit before taxation B R A 1,178,540 935,786 646,139 439,498 305,381
Taxation Hi18 (240,945) (201,600) (145,757) (85,668) (52,609)
Profit for the year FE A% A 937,595 734,186 500,382 353,830 252,772
Attributable to: AT :

Owners of the Company UNGTEZ 2PN 401,494 365,705 208,932 164,560 132,090

Non-controlling interests FEE R iR 536,101 368,481 291,450 189,270 120,682

937,595 734,186 500,382 353,830 252,772
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=F —ZT—F ZT—F ZZ-TF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET FHT FET FET

Assets and liabilities BENEE
Total assets HWEE 12,156,658 9,188,494 7,101,536 4,466,006 3,364,619
Total liabilities BaE (6,330,511) (4,161,664) (2,903,432) (1,214,329)  (1,141,871)
Total equity iR 5,826,147 5,026,830 4,198,104 3,251,677 2,222,748
Non-controlling interests IR S (2,278,767)  (1,847,039) (1,438,629) (822,565) (590,676)
Equity attributable to owners NEGER AEEER

of the Company 3,547,380 3,179,791 2,759,475 2,429,112 1,632,072
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